
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

    Meeting: Thursday, 9th September, 2021 
       at 1.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 12th August, 2021. 
 

3 - 10 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 5.   Review of Premises Licence - Barrow Rugby League Football Club, 
Craven Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow-in-Furness  
  

11 - 150 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Callister 

Hall 
McEwan 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
  

Sharron Rushton 
Democratic Services Officer 
01229 876321 
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Wednesday 1st September, 2021 
 



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Thursday 12th August, 2021 
 at 2.00 pm. (Banqueting Hall) 
 

PRESENT:- Councillors Callister, Gawne and McEwan. 
 

Officers Present:- Ivor Churcher (Commercial Team Leader, Public Protection 
Services), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance) and Paula Westwood 
(Democratic Services Officer – Member Support). 
 

1 – Appointment of Chairman for 2021/2022 
 

Nominations were requested for the appointment of Chairman of the Licensing Sub-
Committee for 2021/2022. 
 

Councillor McEwan moved that Councillor Callister be appointed as Chairman for 
2021/2022.  This was duly seconded by Councillor Gawne and it was, 
 

RESOLVED:- That Councillor Callister be appointed Chairman of the Licensing Sub-
Committee for 2021/2022. 
 

COUNCILLOR CALLISTER IN THE CHAIR 
 

2 – Minutes 
 

The Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 20th October, 2020 were 
taken as read and confirmed. 
 

3 – Application for a New Premises Licence – One Stop Stores Ltd, 98-100 
Friars Lane, Barrow-in-Furness 

 
The Senior Licensing Officer’s report set out details of an application for a Premises 
Licence under section 17(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 for One Stop, 98-100 Friars 
Lane, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA13 9NW.  The applicant was One Stop Stores 
Ltd. 
 
The application had been the subject of nine valid representations and a petition 
containing 97 signatures, all in objection to the application, therefore a hearing had 
been required.   

 

The applicant and parties making the representations had been notified of the 
hearing in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the Regulations”. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Information to accompany the notice of hearing had been provided to the applicant 
and the parties making representations in accordance with “the Regulations”. 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol, supply of alcohol, provision of regulated entertainment, 
and sale of late night refreshment were licensable activities under Section 1 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. Authorisation from the Council, in its role as the Licensing 
Authority, was required in order to carry on any of these activities at premises within 
the Borough. 
 

The Licensing Act 2003 provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.  The 
licensing objectives are:- 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 
• Public safety; 
• The prevention of public nuisance; and 
• The protection of children from harm. 

 
Each objective was of equal importance. There were no other statutory licensing 
objectives, so the promotion of the four objectives was a paramount consideration at 
all times. 
 
Under the Scheme of delegation adopted by the Council, the Licensing Sub-
Committee has responsibility for the exercise of many of the functions of the 
Licensing Authority, including the determination of Premises Licence applications 
where representations had been received, as was the case with this application. 
 
The Sub-Committee had been requested to note that this application was for a 
Licence only and that if the application for a Premises Licence was refused, the shop 
would still be able to operate without selling alcohol, but they must comply with any 
applicable duties which may be imposed by other relevant legislation (e.g. fire, 
health and safety or planning). 

On 10th June, 2021 under s.17(1) of the Act, an application had been made to the 
Licensing Authority by One Stop Stores Ltd, in relation to premises One Stop, 98-
100 Friars Lane, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA13 9NW for a Premises Licence.  

The application sought authorisation for the following: 
 

Supply of Alcohol (off the 
premises) 

Monday – Sunday 6am – 11pm* 

Opening Hours of the Premises Monday – Sunday 6am – 11pm 

 
* The Sub-Committee had been requested to note that since receiving the 
representations, the applicant had proposed revised times of 7am – 11pm for the 
supply of alcohol. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



In accordance with s.17(5) the applicant had advertised the application within the 
prescribed period in the prescribed form and manner.  A notice had been displayed 
on the premises for a 28 day period and the notice had been published in the local 
newspaper. 
 
In addition, notice of application had been given by the applicant through service of a 
copy of the application to the specified responsible Authorities (this obligation had 
been fulfilled by Officers where the application had been given electronically, sent on 
10th June 2021), satisfying s 17(6) of the Act.  
 
Failure to comply with these requirements would render an application invalid. 
 
A full copy of the application, including the operating schedule, plan of premises and 
form of consent had been included as appendices to the report. 
 
The applicant had submitted some additional information ahead of the hearing which 
had been included at Appendix 18 to the report.  This had been circulated to 
Members and had also been published on the Council’s website. 
 
The applicant had provided details within section 18 of their application of the steps 
they intended to take to meet the four licensing objectives.  These steps would in 
turn, where applicable, be made into conditions to be attached to the Premises 
Licence, should the application be granted. 
 
Section 18(3) of the Act states that where relevant representations were made, the 
Authority must hold a hearing to consider them, unless the Authority, the applicant 
and each person who had made representations agreed that a hearing was 
unnecessary. 
 
The Licensing Authority had received relevant representations and therefore had 
given notice of the hearing to the applicant and those persons who had made 
relevant representations (as defined by s. 18(6)) as required by Schedule 2 and 
Regulation 6 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
The Council had consulted with the following Responsible Authorities:-   

 

 Licensing Authority (Barrow Borough Council*) (s.13(4)(g)); 

 The Local Planning Authority (s.13(4)(d)); 

 Environmental Protection Team (s.13(4)(e)); 

 Chief Officer of Police (s.13(4)(a)); 

 Health and Safety Officer (s.13(4)(c)); 

 Divisional Officer, Cumbria Fire and Rescue (s.13(4)(b)); 

 Trading Standards (s.13(4)(f)(ii)); 

 Public Health (s.13(4)(e)); 

 Safeguarding and Review, Child Protection (s.13(4)(f)(i)); and 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 Home Office Immigration Enforcement (The Immigration Act 2016 made the 
Secretary of State a responsible Authority in respect of premises licensed to 
sell alcohol). 

 
On 14th June, 2021 Planning had stated that they had no observations (evidenced at 
Appendix 2 the report. 
 
On 8th July, 2021 Cumbria Fire and Rescue had confirmed that they 
would not be making any representation regarding the application. 
This had been subject to the premises having a suitable and sufficient fire safety risk 
assessment as required by the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
(evidenced at Appendix 3 to the report). 
 
No further representations had been received from Responsible Authorities. 
 
There had been nine representations received from other parties, as well as a 
petition containing 97 signatures, which had been included as appendices to the 
report and summarised as follows:- 
 

Appendix Concerns raised Licensing objective(s) 

4 - Litter 

- Nearby bus stop (potential safety 

issues) 

- Adjacent residents affected (access 

to property) 

- Young children live in the vicinity 

- Anti-social behaviour 

- Broken glass 

- Using alleyway as a urinal 

Public safety 
 
Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 
Protection of children 
from harm 
 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 
 

5 - Litter 

- Anti-social behaviour 

- Noise  

- Families living nearby  

- Using alleyway as a urinal 

Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 
 
Protection of children 
from harm 
 

6 - Further source of alcohol in 

populated area of licensed premises 

- Crime, disorder, public nuisance 

issue for the police 

- Noise nuisance 

- Anti-social behaviour 

Prevention of public 
nuisance 
 
Prevention of crime and 
disorder 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



7 - Litter 

- Noise 

- Anti-social behaviour 

Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 

8 - Adequate shops selling alcohol 

- Drug-related issues in the area 

Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 
 

9 - Increase risk of public nuisance 

- More pressure on police 

- Noise disturbance 

- Issues of public safety 

- Danger to vulnerable families and 

children 

Public safety 
 
Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 
Protection of children 
from harm 
 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 

10 - Increase in crime and disorder 

- Increase of public nuisance 

- Threaten public safety 

- Children gathering 

Public safety 
 
Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 
Protection of children 
from harm 
 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 

11 - Sufficient provision of alcohol 

already available  

Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 

12 - People drinking in the street 

- Litter 

- People urinating in the street 

- Noise/foul language 

- Nuisance from groups gathering 

- Increased traffic – impact on 

children 

Public safety 
 
Prevention of crime and 
disorder 
 
Protection of children 
from harm 
 
Prevention of public 
nuisance 

 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



A letter had been received from Simon Fell MP dated 8th July, 2021 writing on behalf 
of a number of constituents requesting that the petition be considered. 
 
98-100 Friars Lane had not previously held a Premises Licence.  The table below 
summarises details of nearby premises which are licenced to sell alcohol and their 
licensable hours for supply of alcohol off the premises.  The Sub-Committee had 
been requested to note that although premises were licensed to supply alcohol until 
a certain time, they may choose not to remain open until this time.  Some licences 
also had seasonal variations, for example to supply alcohol for a longer period on 
Bank Holidays, at Christmas etc. 
 

Name of Premises Licensable hours for supply of 
alcohol 

Provincial Street Stores, Friars Lane 
(approx. 0.2 miles away) 

08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 
10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

Lesh Lane Post Office (approx. 0.4 
miles away) 

08:00 – 20:00 Monday - Sunday 

Betty Booze (approx. 0.4 miles away) 08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 
10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

Lesh Lane Stores (approx. 0.5 miles 
away) 

07:00 – 23:59 Monday - Sunday 

Co-Op Roose Road (approx. 0.5 miles 
away) 

06:00 – 23:00 Monday - Sunday 

Co-Op, Harrel Lane (approx. 0.6 miles 
away) 

08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 
10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

Aldi, Risedale Road (approx. 0.6 miles 
away) 

08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 
10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

St Lukes Newsagents (approx. 0.6  
miles away) 

08:00 – 22:00 Monday - Sunday 

Bargain Booze, Risedale Road (approx. 
0.6 miles away) 

08:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday 
10:00 – 22:30 Sunday 

Tesco Metro, Roose (approx. 0.7 miles 
away) 

06:00 – 00:00 Monday - Sunday 

 
The applicant’s legal representative addressed the Sub-Committee and answered 
Members’ questions. 
 
Three objectors addressed the Sub-Committee and raised their concerns. The legal 
representative for a further objector also addressed the Sub-Committee.  
 
When considering applications, the Licensing Authority would have regard to:  
 
 • The Licensing Act and licensing objectives;  
 • Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003; 
 • Any supporting regulations; and 
 • The Statement of Licensing Policy. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 
The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have a direct 
relationship to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives.  Every 
application should be considered on its merits, and there must not be a 'blanket 
policy' to the extent that it was applied so rigidly that an exercise of discretion in 
each individual case was precluded.  Applications must be considered with regard to 
the principles of fair process and the Human Rights Act. 
 

In accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings 
Regulations) 2005 (as amended) it was moved by Councillor Callister and seconded 
by Councillor McEwan to move into Part Two to enable a decision to be made as it 
was felt that holding discussions in public would, or would be likely to, inhibit 
substantially, the free and frank exchange of views for the purposes of deliberation. 
Private thinking space was essential to enable all facts, policies and legislation to be 
properly considered and appropriate legal advice obtained.   
 

All parties with the exception of Councillors Callister, Gawne and McEwan, 
Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance) and Paula Westwood 
(Democratic Services Officer – Member Support) withdrew and were 
readmitted to the meeting following the Sub-Committee’s deliberations. 
 

RESOLVED (Unanimously):- To agree to grant the application for One Stop Stores 
Ltd, 98-100 Friar’s Lane, Barrow-in-Furness for the sale of alcohol for consumption 
off the premises Monday to Sunday 7am to 11pm, subject to the mandatory 
conditions in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 and the conditions consistent 
with the Operating Schedule put forward by the Applicant, with clarification that 
CCTV would cover the external areas in the immediate vicinity of the store as well as 
entry and exit points. 
 
The full details of the decision would be confirmed to the parties to the hearing within 
5 days. 
 
All parties to the hearing were advised that they have a right to appeal the decision 
to the Magistrates Court within 21 days. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.11 pm. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Licensing Sub-Committee 

Thursday, 9 September 2021 

Review of Premises Licence – Barrow Rugby League Football 

Club, Craven Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow-in-Furness 

 
 

Report from:   Public Protection Manager 

Report Author:  Katherine Benson 

Wards:    Hindpool 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report sets out details of an application for the review of a premises licence 

under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for Barrow Rugby League Football 

Club, Craven Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1XP.  

 
1.2 The Licensing Authority is now under a duty to review the premises licence held 

in respect of Barrow Rugby League Football Club. 

 
1.3 The report sets out the relevant law when reviewing licences under the Licensing 

Act 2003 (“the Act”) and informs Members of the options available to them when 

reviewing a premises licence. 

 
2.0   Recommendations 

2.1 Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to determine the review and decide 
whether to: 
 
a) Modify the conditions of the licence 

b) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

c) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 

d) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months 

e) Revoke the licence 

f) Leave the licence in its current state 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



3.0 Background and Proposals  
 
 Review application 

3.1 On 15th July 2021 an application was received from Caroline and Jason 

Postlethwaite for a review of the premises licence in respect of Barrow Rugby 

League Football Club, Craven Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow in Furness, 

Cumbria, LA14 1XP. A copy of the review application is attached at Appendix 1. 

The premises are situated in Hindpool ward and a location plan is attached at 

Appendix 2. 

3.2 Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended states that a responsible 

authority or any other person may apply to the relevant licensing authority for a 

review of a licence. 

3.3 The Licensing Act 2003 provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 

objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken. 

The licensing objectives are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; and 

 The protection of children from harm. 

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing 

objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount 

consideration at all times. 

3.4 The Licensing Authority must also have regard to its Statement of Licensing 

Policy, and to the statutory guidance issued by the Home Office under section 

182 of the Act.  Chapter 11 of the Section 182 guidance specifically deals with 

Reviews (Appendix 18). 

3.5 At any stage following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, or 

any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the licence because 

of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing 

objectives.  

3.6 The review has been brought in support of the prevention of crime and disorder 

and the prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives. Supporting evidence 

is detailed within the review application. The main issues are: 

 Indecent exposure 

 Anti-social behaviour 

 Noise levels 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



 Impact of patrons leaving the venue 

 Intoxication of patrons 

 Littering 

3.7 The notice of review has been properly served on all the responsible authorities. 

The Council has complied with the legislative process and displayed the 

appropriate notice at the premises and on its website as required, when the 

application for review was made. 

3.8 The Premises Licence Holder is Barrow Rugby League Football Club and the 

Designated Premises Supervisor is Mr Steven Neale. Mr Neale has been 

Designated Premises Supervisor since 18th November 2019. The licence has 

been in force since the Licensing Act’s inception in 2005.  

3.9 The premises licence has not been subject to any reviews since it was granted. 

3.10 A copy of the existing premises licence is attached at Appendix 3 and currently 

authorises: 

boxing or wrestling 19:00 – 23:00 Monday to Sunday 

live music 11:00 – 23:00 Monday to Sunday 

recorded music  11:00 – 23:00 Monday to Sunday 

performances of dance 11:00 – 23:00 Monday to Sunday 

activity like music/dance 11:00 – 23:00 Monday to Sunday 

facilities for dancing 11:00 – 23:00 Monday to Sunday 

supply of alcohol 11:00 – 23:00 Monday to Wednesday 

11:00 – 00:00 Thursday to Sunday 

3.11 On 25th February 2020 an application was made to the licensing authority for a 

minor variation to the premises licence, to update the existing conditions (see the 

existing conditions as part of the premises licence at Appendix 3). No 

representations were received, and the licence was granted. 

3.12 On 25th June 2021 an application was made to the licensing authority for a full 

variation to the premises licence, to add an additional licensable activity (films). 

Representations have been received; therefore a hearing is required. Depending 

on the outcome of the review, the hearing will be held once the review has been 

determined. 

3.13 For this review the consultation period ran from 15th July 2021 for 28 days 

(starting the day after the review application was made). Representations, during 

that period, have been received from the following: 

 Cumbria Police 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 Barrow Borough Council (Licensing Authority) 

 Barrow Borough Council (Health and Safety) 

 Barrow Borough Council (Environmental Protection) 

 Eight from other parties. 

3.14 The applicant for the review, the current premises licence holder, and those who 

have made representations have all been invited to attend the hearing in 

accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and 

Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the 

Regulations”. Information to accompany the notice of hearing was provided to 

the premises licence holder in accordance with “the Regulations”. 

3.15 The Licensing Sub-Committee when determining an application for review, 

pursuant to section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003 has power to take any of the 

following steps (if any) that it considers necessary for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives which are listed at 3.3. 

 Modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition); 
 

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

 Remove the designated premises supervisor; 

 Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

 Revoke the licence. 

Representations  

3.16 The applicant for the review has consulted with the following responsible 

authorities:-   

• the chief officer of police;  

• the relevant licensing authority*; 

• the local fire and rescue authority;  

• the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 

1974;  

• the local authority with responsibility for environmental health;  

• the local planning authority;  

• a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, 

matters relating to the protection of children from harm; 

• Director of Public Health (DPH); 

• the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and  

• Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State). 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 

*A licensing authority must carry out its function under the act with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives and its licensing statement (s.4). 

 

3.17 Representations from responsible authorities 

 Summarised below are the representations received from Responsible 

Authorities. 

3.18 On 15 July 2021 Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) confirmed they would 

not be making any representation as there is no record of immigration offences 

at the premises (Appendix 4).  

Responsible 

Authority  

Content of representation Licensing 

objective(s) 

Barrow Borough 

Council 

(Environmental 

Protection) – 

Appendix 5 

 

 

- Many complaints made to the 

Council from residents, from a 

number of streets near to the 

premises 

- Complaints relate to noise emanating 

from the premises 

- Premises has been advised to seek 

professional advice from an acoustic 

engineer 

- Written warning sent to premises and 

DPS on 22 June 2021 regarding 

noise  

Prevention of 

public 

nuisance 

 

Barrow Borough 

Council (Health 

and Safety) – 

Appendix 6 

 

 

- COVID regulation breaches 

- Lack of social distancing at premises 

- Cumbria County Council Director of 

Public Health issued directions on a 

large event at the premises in August 

2020, these directions were 

breached 

- Warning letter sent regarding the 

marquee and ensuring it is not 

substantially enclosed in April 2021 

- Coronavirus Improvement Notice 

issued in July 2021 for lack of social 

distancing and no QR code 

- Fixed Penalty Notice issued July 

2021 for allowing bar service 

Public Safety 

 

Prevention of 

crime and 

disorder 

Cumbria Police 

– Appendix 7 

 

 

- Fixed penalty notice issued in 

September 2020 as customers were 

not remaining seated 

- Calls to service at premises however 

Prevention of 

public 

nuisance 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



similar volume to other licensed 

premises in the town 

- Lack of communication from 

premises  

Public safety 

 

Prevention of 

crime and 

disorder 

Barrow Borough 

Council 

(Licensing 

Authority) – 

Appendix 8 

 

 

- Meetings taken place between LA 

and premises 

- Action plan agreed to make changes 

to licence, however some actions 

have not been implemented 

- Written warning to premises 

regarding showing of films without a 

licence 

- Providing bar service when there was 

a legal requirement for table service 

to be provided 

- Breaches of licensing conditions 

regarding number of events allowed 

at premises 

Prevention of 

crime and 

disorder 

 

Public safety 

 

 

 

3.19 Representations from other parties 

 

3.20 There have been 8 representations from other parties, which are summarised 

below.  

  

Appendix Content of representation Licensing objective(s) 

9 - Noise level is far too loud Prevention of public 

nuisance 

10 - Fighting and violent incidents 

- Marquee not 50% open 

- Anti-social behaviour 

- Constantly broken COVID 

rules 

Prevention of crime and 

disorder 

 

Prevention of public 

nuisance 

 

Public safety 

11 - Loud music 12 hours a day 

each weekend & on weekday 

nights 

Prevention of public 

nuisance 

 

12 - Noise level atrocious  

- Loud festivals/events near 

housing estate unacceptable 

 

Prevention of public 

nuisance 

13 - Unnecessary loud music 

- Unable to open windows 

- Nuisance from patrons at the 

premises and leaving 

Prevention of public 

nuisance 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



14 - Deafening levels of music 

- Noise level from the ground 

- Patrons leaving the ground, 

shouting, swearing, screaming 

- Patrons intoxicated – police 

called to respond 

- Broken glass/drug 

paraphernalia  

Public safety 

 

Prevention of crime and 

disorder 

 

Prevention of public 

nuisance 

15 - Excessive noise 

- Anti-social behaviour 

- People urinating in the street 

- Shouting/screaming 

- Residents verbally abused and 

threatened with violence  

Public safety 

 

Prevention of crime and 

disorder 

 

Prevention of public 

nuisance 

16 

 

- Hindpool resident, not been 

disturbed by the noise or 

behaviour from the premises 

Prevention of public 

nuisance 

 

Protection of children 

from harm 

 

3.21  The Council were in receipt of six further emails supporting the premises. The 

emails were not deemed to be relevant to the licensing objectives so have not 

been included within the report. All those who sent emails were responded to 

explaining their representation must relate to one or more of the licensing 

objectives. 

3.22 The Council also received two anonymous representations and two did not 

provide their full address. These representations were supporting the review of 

the premises licence. 

 

Borough of Barrow in Furness, Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 

3.23 9 Review of Premises Licence and other persons   

In addition to Responsible Authorities, any other person can be involved in a 

number of licensing processes under the Act. This includes any individual, body 

or business entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to 

applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises 

licences and club premises certificates in regardless of their geographic proximity 

to the premises. These persons may themselves seek a review of a premises 

licence. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to:  

  • The Licensing Act and licensing objectives  

  • Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

  2003 

  • Any supporting regulations  

  • The Statement of Licensing Policy 

3.24 7.4 When considering applications where representations have been made, the 

Licensing Authority will seek to balance those factors against its duty to promote 

the four licensing objectives and the rights of residents to peace and quiet.  

 

3.25 The Licensing Objectives  

3.26 The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have a direct 

relationship to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Every 

application should be considered on its merits, and there must not be a 'blanket 

policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of discretion in 

each individual case is precluded. Applications must be considered with regard 

to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights Act. 

 

3.27 National Guidance 

3.28 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Section 2 – The Licensing Objectives is attached at Appendix 17. 

 Section 11 – Reviews is attached at Appendix 18. 

3.29  The provisions of section 10 (Appendix 19) of the statutory guidance highlight 

that only precise, appropriate and proportionate conditions, which promote one 

or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence or 

certificate. The Sub-Committee should only impose such conditions as are 

necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of 

the representations received, and should avoid straying into undisputed areas. 

Conditions duplicating other statutory provisions are not considered to be 

appropriate. 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



3.30 Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review  

3.31 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may 

exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives.  

3.32 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any 

further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there 

is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the 

licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of 

time. It is expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings 

as an important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are 

effectively promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence 

holder.  

3.33 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental 

health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either 

orally or in writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to 

address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach 

and should take this into account when considering what further action is 

appropriate.  

3.34 The application must be determined having regard to any relevant 

representations made. The Sub-Committee will need to consider the following 

options regarding this review application. 

3.35 Option 1 

Modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 

conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition) 

Considerations: 

This option allows members to review the existing licence conditions and either 

add new conditions, alter conditions or omit conditions. See Appendix 19 for 

further information on adding conditions to licences. Potential conditions could 

consider: 

o Use of CCTV within the premises and the immediate vicinity; 

o Mandating use of Security Industry Authority staff; 

o Limiting noise output/noise monitoring; 

o Although some entertainment is de-regulated, the licensing 

authority has the power upon a review of a premises licence to 

impose conditions that will still have effect even though the 

entertainment is de-regulated: 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Live Music or recorded music  

16.36 Any existing licence conditions (or conditions added on a 

determination of an application for a premises licence or club 

premises certificate) which relate to live music or recorded music 

remain in place, but are suspended between the hours of 08.00 

and 23.00 on the same day where the following conditions are met: 

 • at the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for 

the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises; 

 • if the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no 

more than 500 people; and  

• the music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day 

 

Licence reviews: Live and recorded music  

o 16.55 On a review of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate, section 177A(3) of the 2003 Act permits a licensing 

authority to lift the suspension and give renewed effect to an 

existing condition relating to music. Similarly, under section 

177A(4), a licensing authority may add a condition relating to music 

as if music were regulated entertainment, and as if that premises 

licence or club premises certificate licensed the music. In both 

instances the condition should include a statement that Section 

177A does not apply to the condition.  

This option can be done in conjunction with options 2, 3, 4 below. 

3.36 Option 2 

Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence and/or 

amending licensable hours 

Considerations: 

This option allows members to remove or amend the existing licensable activities 

(boxing or wrestling, live music, recorded music, performances of dance, activity 

like music/dance, facilities for dancing, supply of alcohol). This can be done 

temporarily (for a period of up to 3 months) or permanently. 

Some entertainment is no longer ‘regulated’ so even if it is removed from the 

licence, the premises will still be permitted to carry on those activities provided 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



exemption criteria is met (Appendix 20). However, as stated in option 1 above, 

the Sub-Committee has the power upon a review to apply conditions even if the 

entertainment is de-regulated. 

This option can be done in conjunction with options 1, 3, 4. 

3.37 Option 3 

Remove the designated premises supervisor (DPS) 

Considerations: 

This will immediately remove the existing DPS. No supply of alcohol may take 

place without a DPS in place, however there is a simplified process to change 

the DPS at the premises which can be done with immediate effect. 

 Barrow BC Statement of Licensing Policy: 

5.6   A DPS should have sufficient experience and knowledge appropriate for 

the operation under their control.  A DPS should be able to control the 

activities on site and respond quickly and efficiently to problems.  

 

5.7    A DPS should be able to demonstrate that they:  

 

 Have sufficient knowledge and experience appropriate to the 

premises that they intend to control 

 Are able to respond to problems quickly and to meet with responsible 

authorities, local residents and ensure adequate direct management 

of individual premises in a timely manner.  

3.38 Option 4 

Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months 

Considerations:  

No licensable activity can take place within the period specified by the committee 

(not exceeding three months). This option can be done in conjunction with 

options 1, 2 and 3. 

3.39 Option 5 

Revoke the licence 

Considerations: 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



The licence will cease with immediate effect and no licensable activity can take 

place at the premises. 

3.40 Option 6 

 Leave the licence in its current state. 

 Considerations: 

 No changes will be made to the licence. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 This is a legislation led process; details of the statutory consultation are detailed 

above. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The requirements of the legislation place restrictions around the options 

available to the Licensing Sub-Committee. The options available are detailed 

above. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The effective implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 will contribute to an 

improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders.  

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.2 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject to 

the risks set out at paragraph 7.10.  

This application is being processed as part of normal duties and therefore the 

work associated with it is contained within the departmental budget. 

7.3 Legal 

7.4 The sub-committee must determine the application, taking into account relevant 

representations, the Licensing Act 2003, the regulations made thereunder 

statutory guidance and the Council’s own Statement of Licensing policy. 

7.5  The application meets the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

7.6 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may 

exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

7.7  Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is 

appropriate, it may take any of the steps referred to above.  In deciding which of 

these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities should so far as 

possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



representations identify.  The remedial action taken should generally be directed 

at these causes and should also be no more than appropriate and proportionate 

response to address causes of concern that instigated the review. 

 

7.8 When a review application by a responsible authority, or any other person, has 

been received the scheme of delegation set out in the Council’s Constitution 

states that these applications should be dealt with by the Sub-Committee. 

 

7.9 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the Council under a duty 

to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise 

of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, 

crime and disorder in its area.  

 

7.10 The decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee can be appealed to the 

Magistrates Court by the applicant or the licence holder within a period of 21 

days beginning with the day that the applicant is notified, in writing, of the 

decision. 

 

7.11 Human Rights 

 

7.12  The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything they 

do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a public 

authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the European 

Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The key elements 

of this include:  

 The right to a fair hearing;  

 The right to a public hearing; 

 The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal; 

 The right to a hearing within a reasonable time.  

 

7.13  While it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub Committee 

as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it is not. Further, 

the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of Natural Justice and 

the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury reasonable’. 

 

7.14 Risks  

 

7.15 An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of the 

application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard to any 

award of costs against it. 

 

Any party to an application (that being an applicant or someone who made a 

representation) has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court. 

 

8.0 Equality and Diversity 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all applicants 

and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the process is 

accessible to all groups within the community.  

 

Contact Officers  

Katherine Benson kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

2 Location plan 

3 Existing Premises Licence  

4 Email from Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) 

5 Representation from Barrow Borough Council (Environmental 

Protection) 

6 Representation from Barrow Borough Council (Health and 

Safety) 

7 Representation from Cumbria Police 

8 Representation from Barrow Borough Council (Licensing 

Authority) 

9 Representation from other party 

10 Representation from other party 

11 Representation from other party 

12 Representation from other party 

13 Representation from other party 

14 Representation from other party 

15 Representation from other party 

16 Representation from other party 

17 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 – Licensing objectives 

18 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 - Reviews 

19 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 – Conditions attached to premises licences and club 

premises certificates 

20 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 – Regulated entertainment 

 

Background Documents Available 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5

mailto:kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk


Name of Background 

document  

Where it is available  

1 Revised Guidance 

issued under section 182 

of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

2 Licensing Act 2003 

 

3 Barrow BC Statement 

of Licensing Policy 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-

memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-

licensing-act-2003 

 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents  

 

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/business/licensing/alcohol-

and-entertainment/  

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/business/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment/
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/business/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment/


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 28

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 29

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 30

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 31

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 32

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 33

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 34

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



�

�������	
����	����	����	�� ���
������� �
!�!"#��
!# $#%&
'())*+
%,-./
01234
567897:1:
;1<<921=
>?@AB
C9D
E6<<
FG6<<DHIJK6L;93MNO6;P
QRSTB
U
CVMD
WHWI
9L
X=YH=HI
G;
0Z[
\@B
]1655
̂68_17
F2:68_17J 9̀7768̀ON26aNV_P
bcdeTfSB
gTB
hijk\lmnB
bkbopi\
bpnQpgq
rR??@s
gctdu
v3
]1655w

[K94_
D6V
<6
;VOK
567
LK1
71GMD
x
719M3<1
LK3<
3<
6VL
65
K6V7<
567
D6V
94:
719M3<1
D6V
K9a1
L6
56MM68
G76O1:V71<N


yK9Lz<
LK1
1{G1OL1:
L3;1<O9M1
65
6̀<17a342
463<1
M1a1M<
L6
71<6Ma342
LK1
3<<V1N

|94D
LK94_<
94:
K9a1
9
2719L
811_14:


C9DN



 }4
U
CVM
WHWIw
9L
X=~Y
G;w
]1655
̂68_17
F2:68_17J 9̀7768̀ON26aNV_P
876L1=

v3
�9DN
x
K9a1
<14L
D6V
O6771<G64:14O1
9̀6VL
D6V7
O6;GM934LN
�4567LV49L1MD
81
<3;GMD
O9446L
<L6G
LK1;
<K68342
LK1
;9LOK
64
ZV4:9DN
y1
971
;671
867731:
9̀6VL
LK1
M64217
L17;
GM94<
567
71L934342
LK1
<O7114
94:
<G19_17
<D<L1;N
[K1
4V3<94O1
9<G1OL
65
LK1
9;GM3531:
463<1
3<
:19ML
83LK
̀D
<L9LVL67D
4V3<94O1
V4:17
LK1
14a3764;14L9M
G76L1OL364
9OL
IUUHN
Z1OL364
�U
94:
XHN
[K3<
;V<L
K9a1
LK1
<VGG67L
65
LK1
O6;GM93494L<
94:
94D
463<1
;V<L
̀1
V4719<649̀M1N
�4567LV49L1MD
LK1
�42M94:
5349M
3<
9
̀M9O_
9719w
31
46
641
86VM:
G76<1OVL1
9
OMV̀
537
<K68342
LK1
;9LOK
1LO
̀197342
34
;34:
LK9L
3L
3<
641
65
;94D
LK9L
971
<K68342
3L
M3a1N
}4O1
92934w
;D
O64O174
71M9L1<
L6
LK1
M64217
L17;
9<
x
:6
46L
894L
463<1
̀1D64:
LK1
276V4:
67
1M<1
81
86VM:
̀94
LK1
V<1
65
9;GM3531:
;V<3ON

x
83MM
G17<649MMD
;643L67342
463<1
M1a1M<
34
LK1
9719
:V7342
LK1<1
1a14L<N

�34:
71297:<
]
̂68_17

Z14L
576;
;D
3EK641

 }4
U
CVM
WHWIw
9L
IX=�Iw
C9D
E6<<
FG6<<DHIJK6L;93MNO6;P
876L1=



Page 35

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



�

��������	
���	�������������	������	���	����������
�������	�������	�������	������	����
��������	���	����������
����	���	���������������	�����
�������������������	���� �	���������!���	������������ ����"�������
�	������ ��	��������
��������	�������	�����
���	��������	�#���	�������	�
����
�������	�	������������$�����	�����������������������������������������	��
%��&�������	������'()*+����	�,���	�������	���������
����	
�	���	��
�	�������������$� �"
�������������������������	����	��� ��������-������	�"�������
�	������������$� �	��
����������
��	
���������������������������������
���������������-
�	��$�.�������-�������������	��
����
�	����	���������������	��/	�� ����
��������
�������������	�����	���$���������	�������	�����	�	�����������������������	���

�������	��	��� �	��
��-�������-�������������	

�������
���	���������	�������������������	������������$�� �	����
	�����������	���������������	
�"��	�����
�	����
��������	��	��$��000000000000000000000000000000000000����
���	����	
������
�	���������
�	��1�����
�
$� ����������������
���	���
�������	��������
�������������������
������-������������������-��������������2����
)33��0��
�0'$����������$
����
$�����4�	��	����$���1�4	��+��5678��*9+:.���.,��;,��.8�<#/�<=>�	./-<=��	����?5��*@+<= ���@��*9+�*����8+�A���B'-.!/
:A������C�D�5�</EE�F	;D�#�<-5-�G�;'-����D�,���>�:*���!/G#�,��,@/�-�<�!(H@B,�@'!/���?�-8!	!9D	+'*�'�D�,9E>-�C@!/!�E�.>+/E#-�D	-E�E�@�D@9�E��-�H�.��+CE/=#��D	�D*���DD!'6>=�C	����=�,D!/�.��D5-'6�+�		+'�.��C�-/��+��DE/!:*�C��5�5+>41�4D.<�CIE�5���D� /C; �<�,�5B-+5BE�1�45+/F#,,�@@�/E-!/�AD�F+<=���HC��;�E�'#��@�;D	@9I>@@'@E���H+41�4�J/�+��K�/6�K/*+(*AA�8A666JA�8	'L$�

Page 36

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Page 37

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



�

�������	
����	����	����	�� ���
������
��� !�"
�#�$%&'()
*+,-.,/&/
0&11.'&2
34567
8.9
:+11
;<+119=>?@+A0.(BCD+0E
FGHI7
>J
8KB9
L=L>
.A
=M2LN2LO
%PQ
R57
S.,+B()&
:+1AB&A@-.(A&
;D?,+B()&CKTE
UVWXIYH7
3Z[7
\G445Z
]Ĝ[I4_
]̀3a


P&)A
*,+0
09
(:@+)&

%&'()
*+,-.,/&/
0&11.'&2
34567
b.A@&,()&
%&)1+)
;Tc&)1+)?c.,,+-cDC'+dCKTE
FGHI7
LL
8K)&
L=L>
.A
e2LN2fe
<0
%PQ
R57
<+119=>?@+A0.(BCD+0
UVWXIYH7
]g7
\G445Z
]Ĝ[I4_
]̀3a
h(
8.1+)i

%.,,+-
j.(/&,1
<,&0(1&1
B(D&)D&
D.)
c&
d(&-&/
@&,&2
@AA<2kkB(D&)1()'Cc.,,+-cDC'+dCKTkl(Dj&'kl(D&)1()'km&*.KBAk:,&0(1&1m&A.(B1nop>qr:stAoPuvj9wL*x8sy%jwL*:,%TwLczL/Sf<@{:)yo,|e=tPO}9{8,->o-O,+MPP:*:~><{�yzo>,�SwLczTAo|wLc=�bMe.+MJ:�+e(


�
.DT)+-B&/'&
.
)K0c&,
+*
(11K&1
.c+KA
A@&
<,&0(1&1
()
9+K,
&0.(B
.)/
@.d&
B+''&/
A@(1
.1
.
D+0<B.()Ai
-@(D@
-(BB
c&
()d&1A('.A&/C
�
@.d&
,&*&,,&/
A@&
(11K&1
9+K
@.d&
,.(1&/
.c+KA
)K(1.)D&
-(A@
09
D+BB&.'K&
()
z)d(,+)0&)A.B
:,+A&DA(+)C
Q@&9
0.9
D+)A.DA
9+K
/(,&DAB9
*+,
*K,A@&,
()*+,0.A(+)C

�(A@
,&'.,/1
.
B.DT
+*
1+D(.B
/(1A.)D()'
.)/
.)A(�1+D(.B
c&@.d(+K,i
A@&1&
.,&
(11K&1
-&
.,&
.-.,&
+*
.)/
-+,T()'
DB+1&B9
-(A@
A@&
<+B(D&
.)/
+A@&,
.'&)D(&1
A+
*()/
.
1+BKA(+)C

:B&.1&
c&
,&.11K,&/
A@&,&
(1
.
B.,'&
.0+K)A
+*
-+,T
A.T()'
<B.D&
c&@()/
A@&
1D&)&1
()
+,/&,
A+
&)1K,&
A@&
<,&0(1&1
(1
D+0<B(.)A
-(A@
.
)K0c&,
+*
,&'KB.A+,9
*,.0&-+,T1
�
A@&,&
.,&
<,+D&11&1
A@&
S+K)D(B
0K1A
*+BB+-C

j&1<+)1(cB&
{KA@+,(A(&1
+,
+A@&,
<&,1+)1
0.9
,&rK&1A
.
,&d(&-
+*
.
B(D&)D&
(*
A@&9
c&B(&d&
A@.A
A@&
<,&0(1&1
(1
K)/&,0()()'
+)&
+,
0+,&
+*
A@&
B(D&)1()'
+cv&DA(d&1C
xK,A@&,
()*+,0.A(+)
+)
A@(1
(1
.d.(B.cB&
d(.
+K,
-&c1(A&C
@AA<12kk---Cc.,,+-cDC'+dCKTkcK1()&11kB(D&)1()'k.BD+@+B�.)/�&)A&,A.()0&)Ak


:B&.1&
B&A
0&
T)+-
(*
9+K
,&rK(,&
*K,A@&,
()*+,0.A(+)C



Page 38

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



�

���������	
����������������������
��������������
�����������������������������������
������������������� �� !���

�"����#����������� �� !���

��$�%������&'(�)�*+�,%���-�	��
��.��������+���+�	�/��"�-��0'))1��23452(������-�0332015)2''���     ����������

��     �!��%-�6�����

�78�

�0'.���%���+��%9�����-�'2�6���)0)'�'3-:1�"�-�$�
��%�������
�7��
��%�
����
.��������+���+�	9����;��-�<$&=">�?-��=��,$"��,?*,@A��������@��B�
�@�!$��#���������
�����B�����8����B�%����������������%���C���D��������
������B�����������@��B��@�!$E����>��%�����
��������������B��������B����������������������������������������%�

���
8�	�
���B�8�������%���B�����������
�B��
����

��F�������8�����������"
��E���������������������������G�H������
�����
��������B�I
����
����(8%������!��B�����B������	�B����������B�������B�%�
���������B���	��B���
������������������������B����
���������
���+���������B�
���������
�����J�
������B��
���B���%����B�����	��������������%�����B��������������
����������������
������������������B+��>��%�
�����������B����������������
���B�>��%�
����������������������B��������+�����B�����B
���6�
�����������                                    �"��
�%������
����
����B�����
8�%�K�����

+�>��������������
�%����
����B��������
��88B�������������
������	�����������������	�����8�����������8
-CC� �
� '+8��������+
�8��
+��%EBL%��������+��K�L�#@0�#�4��1��:60MF���F!8�N!�F1�O�5�OPQ��F5	OP���#@��$���:R0OP>��%R��:60�:���"10�)���;'	F,5
M)�J�%@M";���;!
M)5��N?�F��O��O4==B��N?���O	�	8D"N'	B%@8?"!��Q�M:��,5D�"�?@,0�"P8O�	2SR;!�R',5"%8$@!,�"	@?�!O,=�@;�,5!="R?�!5=R@�@	',@"R?	8*"�RR?='4="B	@S��F��0�R8D="R��	=�F	@!B'�=F%��@,	S"=B@R�=FP8�R',�"=@��01,=P��@08�"0@�=5,�P8

Page 39

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



�

��������	
�	�������������������������������
�	�� ��!"��#�$%��&�'� "(�)�*�!"����+*����,-(.%���/��01���	
0	$22�.�.1��"��3��'++������.�"23+$456 Page 40

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Scale 1:2500.0

Created 20.08.2021

60m40200

Location Plan

This copy has been produced specifically to enable the undertaking of statutory and regulatory requirements imposed on
(c) Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey LA100016831

PRODUCED FOR EXTERNAL COUNCIL BUSINESS USE

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 5
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



�

�

����������������������������������������������������	
�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������� �������� !" "�������������������������������������#$�%��&'�#(#(���)����*��+%����,�� -./012.13�4/5�6778����9:0;.202�-./01/0�� �� 9-7687�<=:>�?@::=A�BC3DE�-0@3C0�<==5D@FF�GFCDH�G:@I01�9@:JH�G@F/C55@�K5:005H�?@::=ALM1L<C:1022H�GC;D:.@H�-4NO�NP9�� ��M22C0Q�=1>�� 6R5S�T@:/S�6767�G=;;01/02>� N75S�T@:/S�6767�411C@F�<00�UC0�U@50>�6O5S�V=I0;D0:����'����W�����������&����X�Y'�������������&�&�������W�&Y��Z��������������Y���Z���Y'��������W�������[��������������Y'����&�&����Y�����&���Z���������Z���������Y'��#��������Z�����Z����Y���Y'�Y�������������Y������&����&Y[��\'�������������&�&��*�������%]*\�������W����������W�����Y�W���Y�����Y'��W�������[��*'��������������Y'����&�&�������̂���������W��&���Y,�W�������Y����Z�������������̂���Y���Y��&�����Y'��&��Y[��_�������&�����,����K@1Q:@�̀aV0.FF�K01.=:�4Q;.1.25:@5=:�bKE250;2�c�?C2.1022d�

Page 43

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�0��I�04�

F��(�0�J�F�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AK�LM��MNNOP���KQ�AOPRS�P�T�KO�SQ�UKUPT�KONUMU
P��VOWPX�RMA�OPQPOPU
P�KO�NP�
OSALSKU���������O��YZ��������Q���Y����
��Y��� L���U��C[DD\�]EĈ_C��
��̀���A��aT�
��������������T�������bS�bQ������T�
�BY��T��M[̂�[cA�� ��dePOP�LeP��S
PU
P�S��LSRP��SRSLPN�LeP�NMLP���f�(��gg ���- &�����S
PU�M��P�M
LSWSLSP��MVLeKOS�PN��X�LeP��S
PU
P����h������d���������̀��R����O����i�i�R����A��j��B�������j�N�����M��̀�Z��a��B���ki�����Q�������j���i��������ll�Z��j�M���	�����LeP�LSRP��LeP��S
PU
P�MVLeKOS�P��LeP�
MOOXSUm�KVL�KQ��S
PU�M��P�M
LSWSLSP���/�(�?�(n����������������������������������������!�,&+�����h������d��������"���+)H��G�n�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�n�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)o&G�&+G�n�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�n�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)*��G�n�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��G�n�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)'��G�n�� 05344�(��2:344���;���@o�&+( ���)p�G���+�� ���;���@o�&+( ���)q�(G���+�� ���

Page 44

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�2��I�04�

�J��K�����"���+)H��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)M&G�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�.�?&�H�+��)N�(G���+�� ��O����P�P�K����"���+)H��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)M&G�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�Q&���G&G�H�+��)R�G���+�� �Q&���G&G�H�+��)N�(G���+�� ��A��S��B�������S�T�����"���+)H��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)M&G�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�$���&)R�G���+�� �$���&)N�(G���+�� ��U��J�V��W��B���XP�����"���+)H��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)M&G�&+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��G�L�� 00344�(��2:344�.�%&�,�+��@G���&)R�G���+�� �.�%&�,�+��@G���&)N�(G���+�� ������

Page 45

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�:��I�04�

J�������K���L������"���+)H��G�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&G�&+G�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��G�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��G�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��G�M�� 00344�(��2:344�*��� �(�&+)$���&)O�G���+�� �*��� �(�&+)$���&)P�(G���+�� ���QQ�R��K�S���	���"���+)H��G�M� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�M� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&G�&+G�M� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�M� 00344�(��44344�"���+)*��G�M� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'�(��G�M� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'��G�M� 00344�(��44344�/ ���� )P��(�&�T�&,�+&+� �/ ���� )PII�(�&�T�&,�+&+� ��UAVWXWY�ZU[\��UJ�]ZV�A\V̂ X�V���"���+)H��G�M� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+G�M� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&G�&+G�M� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+G�M� 00344�(��44344�"���+)*��G�M� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'�(��G�M� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'��G�M� 00344�(��44344�� ��_ZV\V�]ZV��X
VW
V�S[]ZU\X�V���[AA�XV��UJ�S�
UZU��_ZV]ZV\�]ZV�V�S\V�UW�SẀ aU\�UJJ��[AA�XV����/ ���� )P��(�&�T�&,�+&+��/ ���� )PII�(�&�T�&,�+&+�� � A����D��WŜ Vb�c\VYX�]V\V̀ d�S̀ \̀V��b�]V�VAZUWV�W[̂ �V\�SẀ �V̂ SX��c_ZV\V�\V�VeSW]d�UJ�ZU�̀ V\�UJ�A\V̂ X�V���X
VW
V����������\�J
�
��f���A��gb�������hX�hJ������b�
�Bi��b��Sjk�jlA�

Page 46

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�1��I�04�

���JKLM�NKJKO�PQR�KJ�ST�US�OKJV�TSJ�KWXRA�K�
SRAXPY�PQR�KJV�
UXJMNY�PQR�KJ�Z[UKJK�XAA�M
X��K\���������].*�� ]&��+(��(����̂�>�� ���PXRKV�XOOJK���XPO�NK�KAUSPK�PQR�KJ�ST�OK�MLPXNKO�AJKRM�K���QAKJ_M�SJ�[UKJK�NUK�AJKRM�K���M
KP
K��XQNUSJM�K��NUK��QAA�Y�ST�X�
SUS����H��'(&?&��̂&� &� �8�̀��%+(�  �� �+&#�������)a�)*���&++#���,-���#�./0:�5b!� �40225�118065� �� ��AKJ�SPX���M
KP
K�PQR�KJ�XPO�M��QMPL�XQNUSJMNY�ST�AKJ�SPX���M
KP
K�UK�O��Y�OK�MLPXNKO�AJKRM�K����QAKJ_M�SJ�[UKJK�NUK�AJKRM�K���M
KP
K�XQNUSJM�K��TSJ�NUK��QAA�Y�ST�X�
SUS���.��&��&�̂�3��421979� a++�&G�-c3��������)��)*���&++� ����XPPKWK��XPPKW�d��NUK��M
KP�MPL�X
N�DCCE�ZRXPOXNSJY�
SPOMNMSP�\�H��G�(��c����G�(���+���&�+�-e&�(�(���,&�G,&�(�-c��&�(�� ���?&��,&�(>�a(��+�(�&� ��&��&��� G&�f+��&+g��+�-� �(c�(��&�+��&�(��(�(�&c���&��g�(��G�(&���(����c������&+���� &��+ �(���>��H��G�(��c����G�(���+���&�&� ��&��&���(����+&+�(�&�+�gg c��I�� ���� ��h0i�̂��+�gg c��I�� ���� �,�c�-&�,�G&���G&��(�&�g�&,�+&+� ��&��&�)�h�i��(���(�,&���&��(�&�&��+����G&+����(&G�g�&,�+&+�+�g&�?�+�������&+g&�(��I�(�&�g�&,�+&+� ��&��&#����h-i��(���(�,&���&��(�&�G&+����(&G�g�&,�+&+�+�g&�?�+���G�&+���(��� G���g&�+��� � ��&��&������+�g&�+��� � ��&��&��+�+�+g&�G&G>��h2i�<?&�c�+�gg c��I�� ���� ���G&��(�&�g�&,�+&+� ��&��&�,�+(�-&�,�G&������(����+&G�-c���g&�+��������� G+���g&�+��� � ��&��&>�

Page 47

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�9��I�04�

�H��G�(��J����G�(���3�&;��-�(�����I�I� ,+��K0LM�&�&���N�&,�+&+� ��&��&���(����+&+�(�&�&;��-�(�����I�I� ,+#�(�&� ��&��&�,�+(���� �G&������G�(�����&O�������(�&��G,�++�����I���� G�&��(��(�&�&;��-�(�����I���J�I� ,�(��-&��&+(���(&G���������G���&���(��(��+�+&�(���>�K2LM�&�&�(�&�I� ,�� �++�I���(����-�GJ��+�+N&��I�&G����(�&� ��&��&#��� &++�+�-+&�(����K:LK-L��NN �&+#��G,�++�����I���� G�&��,�+(�-&��&+(���(&G���������G���&���(����J��&��,,&�G�(����,�G&�-J�(��(�-�GJ>�K:LM�&�&)�K�L(�&�I� ,�� �++�I���(����-�GJ��+���(�+N&��I�&G����(�&� ��&��&#����K-L(�&��& &?��(� ��&�+������(����(J���+���(�I�&G�(�&��� G&���I�(�&� ��&��&�(��(�(��+�+�-+&�(�����NN �&+�(��(�&�I� ,����O�&+(���#��G,�++�����I���� G�&��,�+(�-&��&+(���(&G���������G���&���(����J��&��,,&�G�(����,�G&�-J�(��(� ��&�+������(����(J>�K1LP��(��+�+&�(���)�Q�RSTUVWXYZR�[Y\Z]�̂YX]_Z]�\̀YW�aZWYX�bcd�\ZW�Q�ReUV[�SV\]]UeUS\fU_Z�g_WhR�[Y\Z]�fTY�̂YX]_Z�_X�̂YX]_Z]�G&+����(&G��+�(�&���(����(J���G&��+&�(����1��I�(�&�i�G&��j&���G���+�/�(�0561�K�>�:5LK��(����(J�(��G&(&�,��&�+��(�-� �(J��I�?�G&�����%+�I���� �++�I���(���L>��H��G�(��J����G�(������&�&�$����'�N&�?�+��+���&�N��?�G&G�K<;�&N(�(�&�(�&+#����&,�+#�-�������  +���G���+���+L��K0L�M�&�&���N�&,�+&+� ��&��&���� �G&+������G�(����(��(��(�+N&��I�&G�(�,&+���&����,��&���G�?�G�� +�,�+(�-&��(�(�&�N�&,�+&+�(������J���(���+&����(J���(�?�(J#�&������G�?�G�� �,�+(3��L��&���(����+&G�(������J���(�(��(���(�?�(J�-J��� ��&��&�����(&G���G&��(�&�F��?�(&�'&����(J�/�(�2440�KF'P/Lk����-L��&�&�(�( &G�(������J���(�(��(���(�?�(J�-J�?��(�&��I�+&�(����1��I�(�&�.��&�+����/�(�244:��K2L���(���(��������+�-+&�(����K0L��-�?&��&O���&+�+���������G�(����(��-&��,N�+&G3�K�L�P���&+N&�(��I�N�&,�+&+���(����N������N��6K:LK�L��I�'��&G� &�2�(��(�&�F'P/�2440KN�&,�+&+���(��N�&,�+&+� ��&��&+���(����+����N �J+����I� ,+Lk����K-L�P���&+N&�(��I�N�&,�+&+�����& �(����(�3�K�L�/�J�����+����,&�(���&G����N������N��6K:LK-L����K�L��I�(��(�'��&G� &�KN�&,�+&+�-&�����+&G�&;� �+�?& J�-J�(�&�� �-���(��� �-�N�&,�+&+��&�(�I���(&#���G&����(&,N����J�&?&�(���(��&���(����+����I� ,+������G&������,���� ��&��&#����K��L�/�J�����+������(����N������N��6K:LKGL��I�(��(�'��&G� &�K����+���+�N�&+���-&G�-J��&�� �(���+���G&��(��(�/�(L�K:L�*���(�&�N��N�+&+��I�(��+�+&�(���3�K�L�l+&����(J���(�?�(Jl�,&��+������(�?�(J�(��������N������N��2K0L�K�L��I�(��(�'��&G� &��NN �&+#���G#��������+� ��&�+�- &����G��(�I���(�&�N��N�+&��I�(��(�/�(#�K-L�F������N��6K9L��I�(��(�'��&G� &�K��(&�N�&(�(�����I��&I&�&��&+�(���������+���L��NN �&+��+��(��NN �&+�����& �(����(��N������N��6��I�(��(�'��&G� &>�����

Page 48

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�8��I�04�

!�&�I�  ���������G�(���+�+��  ��JJ K�I��,�26(��H�K�2401��L0M�/��& &?��(�J&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��(����� ���� ��+�+� G����+�JJ �&G�I������+�,J(�����������II�(�&�J�&,�+&+�I�����J���&��������+� &++�(����(�&�J&�,�((&G�J���&>�L2M�*���(�&�J��J�+&+��I�(�&����G�(����+&(���(����J������J��0�)��L�M�NG�(KN��+�(��-&����+(��&G���������G���&���(��(�&�/ ���� ���.�O����$�(�&+�/�(�0575P�L-M�NJ&�,�((&G�J���&N��+�(�&�J���&�I���G�-K��JJ K����(�&�I��,� ��)�F�Q�$�R�L$�;�SM�T�&�&�)��L�M�F��+�(�&�J&�,�((&G�J���&#��L��M��$��+�(�&���(&��I�G�(K������&�- &�����& �(����(��(�&�� ���� ��+��I�(�&�G�(K��&�&������&G����(�&�G�(&��I�(�&�+� &����+�JJ K��I�(�&�� ���� #���G�L���M�S��+�(�&���(&��I�?� �&��GG&G�(�;������&�- &�����& �(����(��(�&�� ���� ��+��I�(�&�?� �&��GG&G�(�;��&�&������&G����(�&�G�(&��I�(�&�+� &����+�JJ K��I�(�&�� ���� P��L�M�N�& &?��(�J&�+��N�,&��+#�����& �(����(��J�&,�+&+�����&+J&�(��I�������(�&�&��+����I���&���J�&,�+&+� ��&��&)��L�M�(�&��� G&���I�(�&�J�&,�+&+� ��&��&#�L��M�(�&�G&+����(&G�J�&,�+&+�+�J&�?�+���L�I���KM�����&+J&�(��I�+������ ��&��&#����L���M�(�&�J&�+��� � ��&��&��� G&������,�%&+������(����+&+���+�JJ K��I�� ���� ���G&��+������ ��&��&P��LGM�N�& &?��(�J&�+��N�,&��+#�����& �(����(��J�&,�+&+�����&+J&�(��I�������(�&�&��+����I���&���� �-�J�&,�+&+��&�(�I���(&#���K�,&,-&������II��&���I�(�&�� �-�J�&+&�(����(�&�J�&,�+&+��������J���(K�������&��- &+�(�&�,&,-&������II��&��(��J�&?&�(�(�&�+�JJ K����O�&+(���P���G��L&M�N?� �&G��GG&G�(�;N�,&��+�?� �&��GG&G�(�;������&G���������G���&���(��(�&�S� �&�/GG&G�!�;�/�(�0551>��L:M��T�&�&�(�&�J&�,�((&G�J���&���?&��-K�F������J��L-M��I�J������J��2���� G�L�J��(�I��,�(��+�J������J�M���(�-&������ &���,-&���I�J&���&+#�(�&�J���&���?&��-K�(��(�+�-)J������J��+��  �-&�(�%&��(��-&�(�&�J���&���(��  K���?&��-K�(��(�+�-)J������J������G&G��J�(��(�&��&��&+(�J&��K>��L1M�L0M�'�-)J������J��L2M��JJ �&+���&�&�(�&�J&�,�((&G�J���&���?&��-K�F������J��L-M��I�J������J��2������G�K�LN(�&�I��+(�G�KNM���� G�-&�G�II&�&�(�I��,�(�&�J&�,�((&G�J���&����(�&��&;(�G�K�LN(�&�+&���G�G�KNM��+����&+� (��I��������&�(��(�&���(&��I�G�(K����?� �&��GG&G�(�;>��L2M�!�&�J&�,�((&G�J���&���������� G��JJ K����(�&�I��+(�G�K��JJ �&+�(��+� &+����+�JJ �&+��I�� ���� �������(�%&�J ��&�-&I��&�(�&�&;J��K��I�01�G�K+�-&�����������(�&�+&���G�G�K>��!�&�I�  ���������G�(���+�+��  ��JJ K�I��,�0+(�U�(�-&��2401��0>�L0M�!�&��&+J��+�- &�J&�+���,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�+(�II�����& &?��(�J�&,�+&+�G����(�����K��(#�������&����J��(���J�(&������K����&+J��+�- &�J��,�(���+�����& �(����(��(�&�J�&,�+&+>�

Page 49

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�7��I�04�

J2K�L��(��+�M������M�#�������&+M��+�- &�M��,�(����,&��+���N���&����,��&��I�(�&�I�  ��������(�?�(�&+#����+�-+(��(��  N�+�,� �����(�?�(�&+#������&G����I���(�&�M��M�+&��I�&�����������(�&�+� &����+�MM N��I�� ���� �I������+�,M(�������(�&�M�&,�+&+)�J�K���,&+�����(�&����(�?�(�&+��������&O���&����&�������&#������&�G&+���&G�(���&O���&����&�������&#���G�?�G�� +�(�)�J�K�G���%���O���(�(N��I�� ���� ���(������(�,&� �,�(�J�(�&��(����(��G���%�� ���� �+� G����+�MM �&G����(�&�M�&,�+&+�-&I��&�(�&��&++�(�����I�(�&�M&���G����������(�&��&+M��+�- &�M&�+����+���(����+&G�(��+&  ����+�MM N�� ���� K#����J��K�G���%��+�,����� ���� ��+�M�++�- &�J��&(�&����(������(�,&� �,�(�����(�&���+&KP�J-K�M��?�+�����I��� �,�(&G������+M&��I�&G�O���(�(�&+��I�� ���� �I�&&����I�����I�;&G����G�+����(&G�I&&�(��(�&�M�- ������(��������M�G&I��&G�-N���M��(��� ���������(&��+(��������,���&�������������&+���+����I����(���+%��I���G&�,�������� ��&�+�����-Q&�(�?&P�J�K�M��?�+�����I�I�&&����G�+����(&G�� ���� ������N��(�&��(������+���M��R&�(��&�������&�����&���G�(�&�M�����+&���G����+�,M(�����I�� ���� ��?&����M&���G��I�21�����+���� &++������,���&�������������&+���+����I����(���+%��I���G&�,�������� ��&�+�����-Q&�(�?&P�JGK�+&  �������+�MM N����� ���� �����++����(������(��M��,�(���� �M�+(&�+����I N&�+���#�������(�&�?�����(N��I#�(�&�M�&,�+&+������������&�+���- N�-&����+�G&�&G�(�����G��&#�&�������&����� �,���+&���(�)+���� �-&��?��������(���&I&��(��(�&�&II&�(+��I�G���%&��&++������N�I�?����- &�,���&�P�J&K�G�+M&�+����� ���� �G��&�( N�-N���&�M&�+�����(��(�&�,��(���I����(�&��J�(�&��(������&�&�(��(��(�&��M&�+����+����- &�(��G���%���(���(��++�+(���&�-N��&�+����I�G�+�-� �(NK>��2>�!�&��&+M��+�- &�M&�+���,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�I�&&�M�(�- &���(&���+�M��?�G&G�����&O�&+(�(����+(�,&�+���&�&��(��+��&�+���- N��?�� �- &>��:>�J0K�!�&�M�&,�+&+� ��&��&��� G&������ �-�M�&,�+&+��&�(�I���(&��� G&��,�+(�&�+��&�(��(������&�?&��I���(����M� ��N��+��G�M(&G�����&+M&�(��I�(�&�M�&,�+&+�����& �(����(��(�&�+� &����+�MM N��I�� ���� >�J2K�!�&�G&+����(&G�M�&,�+&+�+�M&�?�+�������& �(����(��(�&�M�&,�+&+� ��&��&�,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�(�&�+�MM N��I�� ���� ��(�(�&�M�&,�+&+��+������&G������������G���&���(��(�&���&�?&��I���(����M� ��N>�J:K�!�&�M� ��N�,�+(��&O���&���G�?�G�� +������MM&���(��(�&��&+M��+�- &�M&�+���(��-&���G&��06�N&��+��I���&�J���+����� G&����&��+�,�N�-&�+M&��I�&G����(�&�M� ��NK�(��M��G��&�����&O�&+(#�-&I��&�-&����+&�?&G�� ���� #��G&�(�I���(����-&������(�&���M��(����M�#�G�(&��I�-��(����G�&�(�&��)��J�K����� ����M����,��%#�����J-K����� (��?�� &(�I&�(��&>��1>�!�&��&+M��+�- &�M&�+���,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�)�J�K���&�&���N��I�(�&�I�  ������� ���� ���G���%+��+�+� G����+�MM �&G�I������+�,M(�������(�&�M�&,�+&+�J�(�&��(����� ���� ���G���%+�+� G����+�MM �&G���?����-&&��,�G&��M�����G?���&��&�GN�I���+� &����+�MM N������+&���& N�� �+&G����(���&�K��(��+��?�� �- &�(����+(�,&�+����(�&�I�  ������,&�+��&+�)�J�K�-&&�������G&�3�0@2�M��(P�J��K����#���,#�?�G%��������+%N3�29�, ����:9�, P���G�J���K�+(�  ����&������� �++3�029�, P��J-K�(�&+&�,&�+��&+���&�G�+M �N&G������,&��#�M���&� �+(�����(�&��M���(&G�,�(&��� ��������+��?�� �- &�(����+(�,&�+����(�&�M�&,�+&+P���G�

Page 50

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�6��I�04�

�J�K���&�&�����+(�,&��G�&+���(�����& �(����(����+� &��I�� ���� �+L&��IM�(�&�N���(�(M��I�� ���� �(��-&�+� G#�(�&���+(�,&���+�,�G&�����&�(��(�(�&+&�,&�+��&+���&��?�� �- &>O��PQQRS�D�T�
UQVWXWUQ��
UQ�W�XRQX�YWXZ�XZR�UAR[PXWQ\��
ZRV]�R���
��̂�����[�����������	��A��_�������̀�
�B����̂�V���̂���� 0>�a&���?&��&�&�( M�&�&�(&G���L��L�+&�-�� (����(�� ����,�J�+��&N���&G���G&��(�&�b��G&�(��'�I&(M��(�'L��(+�b����G+K���G��(��+�L ���&G�(����?&�����������G���(���G&N��(&���!c����(�&�I�(��&>�!��+���  �-&�G��&���� ���+�����(����G�(��(�&�+�(�+I��(�����I���,-����F� ��&>�2>�/  �+(�II�������&���?� ?&G����(�&�+� &��I�� ���� ���  ��&�&�?&�+��(�- &�(���������L�����,,&��&,&�(���I�(�&���&,L �M,&�(�����& �(����(��(�&�L���I��I���&�+��&,&��G�L(&G�-M�(�&�L�&,�+&+���G�+��(�- &��&I�&+�&��(����������  �-&���,L &(&G�-M���(� �(&��(����&?&�M�8�,��(�+�(�&�&�I(&�>�:>�!����������  �-&�G���,&�(&G���G�-&��?�� �- &�I�����+L&�(����(��(�&�F� ��&���G���(����+&G�dII��&�+��I�(�&�.��&�+����/�(����(?�������&��&+(>�1>�/  �+(�II�������&���?� ?&G����(�&�+� &��I�� ���� ���  �-&�(����&G�����& �(����(���  ��I�(�&� ��&�+�����-e&�(�?&+�+���+�(��L�&?&�(����,&#�G�+��G&�#�L�- ������+���&���G�(��L��,�(&�L�- ���+�I&(M���G�(�&�������������L��(&�(�����I���� G�&��I��,����,>�'����(����������  �&���,L�++�+&�?��&��&I�+� �+%�  +���G��&�����+���������������������G���%&��&++>�9>�f&I�&+�&��(����������  �-&���,L &(&G���(� �(&��(����&?&�M�8�,��(�+�(�&�&�I(&�>�!����������  �-&�G���,&�(&G���G�-&��?�� �- &�I�����+L&�(����(��(�&�F� ��&���G���(����+&G�dII��&�+��I�(�&�.��&�+����/�(����(M��L����&N�&+(>�8>�/������G&�(�-��%���  �-&�,���(���&G���&���� ��&�+�- &���(�?�(M��+�-&�������G��(&G��(�(�&�L�&,�+&+����������+��  �-&��&���G&Gg�������������>�/  �����G&�(+��I����,&���G�G�+��G&�������������->�/�M��&I�+&G�+� &+�(��+�+L&�(&G���G&����&����G���%&��L&�+��+�������������>�/��&���G��I���M�L&�+����&I�+&G��G,�++��������+%&G�(�� &�?&�(�&�L�&,�+&+��������������G>�$&(�� +��I�(��+&�����+���+���&��L� ��&���&���  &G�(��(�&�L�&,�+&+������������&>�/�M�����G&�(���?� ?����(�&�,�+�+&�����&��?&�M��I�G���+>�����������!�&�����G&�(�-��%���  �-&�,�G&��?�� �- &�(��(�&�F� ��&���G�/�(����+&G�dII��&�+��I�(�&�.��&�+�����������������/�(����(M��L����&N�&+(>�!�&�&�+��  �-&����I���&�I���(�&�L�&,�+&+���G���+�+&�����L� ��M�I���L��+L&�(�?&��������������+(�,&�+�������+��  �-&�G&?& �L&G���� ���+�����(����G�(��(�&�+�(�+I��(�����I�(�&�F� ��&�.��&�+�����������������dII��&��I���(�&���&������&��&G>�7>�*����  �&?&�(+�&���,L�++������&�� �(&G�&�(&�(���,&�(����(��(�&�&;L&�(&G��((&�G���&��-�?&�155�L&�L &�(�&�&���  �-&�����+%��++&++,&�(������&G���(�L�����(��(�&�&?&�(�(�%����L ��&���G�����+%��++&++,&�(���  �(�%&�L ��&��+�(��(�&�L��?�+�����I�'h/�+(�II>������������!�&���+%��++&++,&�(���  �-&��?�� �- &�����&N�&+(��I���F� ��&�dII��&�������(����+&G��II��&���I�(�&������������������� >��
��̂������[�����������A�i�����̀��j�0>�d���+(&���G+���&��  �(����&G���G��&��L&��(&���(��2�I�  M�N�� �I�&G�"&� (��k�'�I&(M��II��&�+>�2>�l�(�I���(����(��(�&������� �(��-&�,�G&#�������(���#��(� &�+(�6��&&%+�L�����(����M���(G����&?&�(���(��(�&�

Page 51

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�5��I�04�

��(���J�(&G��((&�G���&���-�?&�155�(�%����J ��&�K(��(�&���,J�++&+��&�� �(&G�&�(&�(���,&�(L>�!��+���������������(�I���(����+��� G�� +��-&�,�G&�(����,-����F� ��&#���������������������� � ��&�+����G&J��(,&�(�������������������G���M�(���G�J��(M�&?&�(�������+&����&�&��JJ��J���(&>�:>�$&(�� +��I�����(�&�&?&�(��+�(��-&�+(&���G&G�,�+(�-&�J��?�G&G���G����&&G���(��(�&�J� ��&>�������������!��+���  ���� �G&���&�&��&N���&G���G�G&&,&G��&�&++��M�-M�J� ��&�(�&�J��?�+�����I�'O/�G������������������+�J&�?�+��+�+�II���&�(�(�����(�� �(�&�&�(�M��I�J&�+��+�(��(�&�J�&,�+&+���G�I���(�&�%&&J�����I���G&�������������������(�&�J�&,�+&+���&��(�&M���&��J&��(��(�&�J�- ��>�1>�/����((&����+%��++&++,&�(���  �-&�+�-,�((&G��I���(�&�J��J�+&G�&?&�(���(���&I&�&��&�(��(�&�"'P�059�&?&�(�+�I&(M����G&�K(�&�QJ��J &�-��%QL>�9>�/����((&��,����&,&�(��J ����I�(�&�&?&�(���  �-&�+�-,�((&G���(���&I&�&��&�(��(�&�"'P�059�&?&�(�+�I&(M����G&�K(�&�QJ��J &�-��%QL>������������!�&�J �����  ���� �G&���&�&��JJ ���- &�(�&� �M��(��I�(�&�&?&�(+���G��((���(���+#�+(�����#�,��N�&&+#������������������&,&��&��M�&;�(+���G�&,&��&��M�J���&���,-&�+���  ��&&G�(��-&�J��?�G&G�(��(�&�+�(�+I��(�����I�(�&���������������J� ��&>��
��R������S�����������	��A��T�������U�A�V���W�������� 0>�X&�J�+(��  �����I�;(��&+�&;(&���  M�(��(�&������G���G���  �����&�+&�(��+�(����� �G&���M�I��(�&��&?&�(+�(��(���  �-&�(�%����J ��&>�2>�!�&�+(�G��,��+�G&+���&G�+��(��(��� �,�(&G��,���(��I����+&��+���G�- &�&;(&���  M�(��(�&������G�-�(�+��� G�����++�&���,&�(�� ���(�(��(��+����+������G�+(��-���&����������(&�,&�+��&+���  �-&�(�%&��(��,���,�+&�(�&�&II&�(>��.��� ��&+�G&�(+�)�J��J&�(�&+�-&(�&&��� �?&�'(�&&(���G�� �%&�'(�&&(#�-���G&G�-M�$�%&�'(�&&(���G�"��GJ�� �Y��G���  �-&���?&����I��,� ����((&����(��&��I���M�&?&�(�(��(�&���,J�++&+��&�� �(&G�&�(&�(���,&�(���G�,��&�(����155�J&�J &���&�&;J&�(&G�(���((&�G�K&;�&J(����-M#�I��(-�  ���G�/,&������I��(-�  �,�(��&+L��6��&&%+�J�����(��(�&�&?&�(>�/���G?&�(��I�(�&�&?&�(���  �� +��-&�J ��&G������ ��� ��&�+J�J&�����+���� �,&G���&N��?� &�(>�:>�!�&�I�  ���������G�(���+���&�(��-&��((���&G�(��M����F�&,�+&+�.��&��&�(����?&��Z[!$ZZY���&�� �(&G�&�(&�(���,&�(>���LY&�� �(&G��<�(&�(���,&�(�K&;�&J(����-M#��I��(-�  ���G�/,&������I��(-�  �,�(��&+L���&�&�,��&�(����155�J&�+��+���&�&;J&�(&G�(���((&�G��+� �,�(&G�I��,�OZ3ZZ��+���(� �2:344��+�������,��&�(����1�G�M+������M���&��� &�G���M&��>������������-L!�&�.��&��&��� G&����  �-&��&+J��+�- &�I���,���(������(�&�-��%�����G����+&� &?& #��(����+&�+&�+�(�?&������������� ���(���+#�J�����(��(�&�&?&�(#�(��J�&G��(�(�&����+&� &?& ��(�(�&�,�;����G&+%�K���(�� �J���(L>������������$&(�� +��I�(��+�-��%�����G����+&� &?& �,���(������,�+(�-&�+�-,�((&G�(��(�&�<�?����,&�(� ��F��(&�(�������������������!&�,#���������������������� �J�����(����M�&?&�(>�������������L!�&�-��%�����G����+&� &?& �./54�+��  �-&�,&�+��&G�I�����M�OZ�,���(&�J&���G#���&�����&?&�(��+����������������������#�-�(���G&��+�,� ������G�(���+�(��(���  �J�&?�� �K�>&>��(�&�+�,&�(�,&���G�G�M��I�(�&��&&%L>������������GL!�&�./&N�,&�+��&G�I�����M�OZ�,���(&�J&���G��(�O,�I��,�(�&�I�\�G&��I������+&�+&�+�(�?&� ���(���#���������������G������(�&�&?&�(#�+��  ���(�&;�&&G�(�&�-��%�����G����+&� &?& �K./54L�-M�,��&�(���� �9G�K/L>�]�����+&��������������+&�+�(�?&�J�&,�+&+�+��  �-&�&;J�+&G�(�����./&N��04�,���(&��I�,��&�(����89G�K/L>������������&L�!�&�.��&��&��� G&����  �-&��&+J��+�- &�I���,���(��������G��&���G�������+&� &?& +�G��������M�&?&�(>����������������/�,���(������J�����,,&�,�+(�-&����&&G���(��<�?����,&�(� �F��(&�(����!&�,#���������������������������������� �J�����(����M�&?&�(>�$&(�� +��I�(�&����+&�,���(������,�+(�-&�,�G&��?�� �- &����G&,��G#�(�����

Page 52

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEC�� �

$�(&�F���(&G3�29�H�����2424� � � F��&�04��I�04�

������������/�(����+&G�JII��&���I�(�&������� ���G�� +��+�-,�((&G�(��(�&�<�?����,&�(� �F��(&�(����!&�,#����������������������������������� �16�����+�I�  ��������K�&?&�(>�������������IL!�&�.��&��&��� G&��,�+(��&���G�G&(�� +��I���K���,M ���(+��&�&�?&G��-��(�&?&�(+���G��&���G���K������������������(����(�%&��(���&+� ?&�(�&���,M ���(>��
��N�����O�����������	��A����������P�
	�N����P��B��Q��B�� 0>���� G�F��(&�(����F� ��K����M ��&>�2>�!�&�&���  �-&������  &��&�29�F� ��K�����M&��(�����(�(�&�M�&,�+&+#��&R���������K���G�?�G�� ����� ��%+�(��-&���G&��(�&���&��I29�K&��+�(��M��?�G&��G&�(�I���(����(��M��?&�(�&K���&��?&��(�&���&��I�06���&��M�����+����� ���� >��!�&��� K�I��,+��I��G&�(�I���(����(��-&����&M(&G���  �-&���M��(�����G�G��?���� ��&��&#���?� �G�M�++M��(#���F/''�����&G�(&G�M���I��I���&����G#������K��(�&��I��,��I��G&�(�I���(�������&&G���(����,-�������+(�-� ��K>�:>�� &���+�����&���  �-&�M ��&G���G�-&�?�+�- &������G�(�&�G&+����(&G�-��+>��STTUV�E�W�
XTYZ[ZXT��S[[S
QUY�S\[UO�S�QUSOZT]��̂ �[QU��Z
UT�ZT]�S_[QXOZ[̂ ��̀(��MM ���- &>��STTUV�a�W�A�ST��� �F ��+�+�MM �&G�-K��������b.*�����0@46@2402��

Page 53

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFD�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�29�I�����2424� � G��&�0��J�1�

G�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AK�LM��MNNOP���KQ�AOPRS�P�T�KO�SQ�UKUPT�KONUMU
P��VOWPX�RMA�OPQPOPU
P�KO�NP�
OSALSKU���������O��YC��������Q���Y����
��Y� �
��Z���A��[T�
��������������T�������\S�\Q������T�
�BY��T��M]̂�]_A�L���U��D]EÈ�aFD̂bD���cdPOP�LdP��S
PU
P�S��LSRP��SRSLPN�LdP�NMLP���e�(��ff ���- &�����S
PU�M��P�M
LSWSLSP��MVLdKOS�PN��X�LdP��S
PU
P�����g������c���������Z��R����O����h�h�R����A��i��B�������i�N�����M��Z�C��[��B���jh�����Q�������i���h��������kk�C��i�M���	���� ��LdP�LSRP��LdP��S
PU
P�MVLdKOS�P��LdP�
MOOXSUl�KVL�KQ��S
PU�M��P�M
LSWSLSP���/�(�?�(m� !�,&+����g������c��������"���+)I��H�m�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�m�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)n&H�&+H�m�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�m�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)*��H�m�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��H�m�� 05344�(��2:344�"���+)'��H�m�� 05344�(��2:344���;���@n�&+( ���)o�H���+�� ���;���@n�&+( ���)p�(H���+�� �

Page 54

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFD�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�29�I�����2424� � G��&�2��J�1�

�K��L�����"���+)I��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�.�?&�I�+��)O�(H���+�� �P����Q�Q�L����"���+)I��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�R&���H&H�I�+��)S�H���+�� �R&���H&H�I�+��)O�(H���+�� �A��T��B�������T�U�����"���+)I��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�$���&)S�H���+�� �$���&)O�(H���+�� �V��K�C��W��B���XQ�����"���+)I��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�.�%&�,�+��@H���&)S�H���+�� �.�%&�,�+��@H���&)O�(H���+�� �Y�������T���Q������"���+)I��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��2:344�

Page 55

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFD�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�29�I�����2424� � G��&�:��J�1�

"���+)'��H�K�� 00344�(��2:344�*��� �(�&+)$���&)L�H���+�� �*��� �(�&+)$���&)M�(H���+�� ���NN�C��O�P���	���"���+)I��H�K�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�K�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)Q&H�&+H�K�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�K�� 00344�(��44344�"���+)*��H�K�� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'�(��H�K�� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'��H�K�� 00344�(��44344�/ ���� )M��(�&�R�&,�+&+�� �/ ���� )MJJ�(�&�R�&,�+&+�� ���SATUVUW�XSYZ��S[�\XT�AZT]V�T���"���+)I��H�K�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!�&+H�K�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)Q&H�&+H�K�� 00344�(��2:344�"���+)!���+H�K�� 00344�(��44344�"���+)*��H�K�� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'�(��H�K�� 00344�(��44344�"���+)'��H�K�� 00344�(��44344���̂XTZT�\XT��V
TU
T�PY\XSZV�T���YAA�VT��S[�P�
SXS��̂XT\XTZ�\XT�T�PZT�SU�PU_̀SZ�S[[��YAA�VT����/ ���� )M��(�&�R�&,�+&+��/ ���� )MJJ�(�&�R�&,�+&+���UP]Ta�bZTWV�\TZT_c�P__ZT���S[�XS�_TZ�S[�AZT]V�T���V
TU
T����������Z�[
�
��d���A��ea�������fV�f[������a�
�Bg��a��Phi�hjA���ZTWV�\TZT_�UY]�TZ�S[�XS�_TZa�[SZ�TjP]A�T�
S]APUk�UY]�TZa�
XPZV\k�UY]�TZ�b̂ XTZT�PAA�V
P��Tl���������m.*�� m&��+(��(����n�>�����

Page 56

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFD�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�29�I�����2424� � G��&�1��J�1�

�KLMN�OP�QN�RSKLTNQ�AUNMR�N���VANUWR�OU�XYNUN�TYN�AUNMR�N���R
NK
N�LVTYOUR�N��TYN��VAA�Z�OP�L�
OYO����I��'(&?&��[&� &� ����TLTN�XYNTYNU�L

N���TO�TYN�AUNMR�N���Z�
YR�QUNK�R��UN�TUR
TNQ�OU�AUOYR�RTNQ���� �

Page 57

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



Page 58

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



Page 59

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



Page 60

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



Page 61

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ����������
����������	�� ��
 !�"
#$#�
�%&$'(� ��)*��
+,-�����./0�1�� 23&
4���)��)5
6�7
688����7��)&
9�������
����)��
�88����7��)
:��
�����;





<�)*
=�5��*�

��	>��
?@A��BB
C��	��
D>��	�������
E
�F�����
G
�.��	���H
 
I./B�1
I���1��	
���J�1��

��.K�
L
����MN�	N�.�	���
O�;)
P���Q
R����;S�)S2!�)���Q
�!�T���
46�'
#4UV
W���B�
�"�)����XT����;T�V5��V!Y
Z
(�B�
[$�##\]
̂%_�'̀
a/�B��
$%̂'̀
'%�#_�


bcdef
ghi
jklmnmk
oplqrsprt
ujklmnmkvnmwqmxxplqytmzy{|}

~���f
��
�{k�
����
�����
�df
�v�mkprqy{|�
�mwwq�lp�k
hq�zplqs
ulmwwq�lp�kv����m��lytmzy{|}�
hm{�nqzqr�svl{w��p�y�mkplqy{|�
��{kyn�r��vl{w��p�ytmzy{|
u����m�y�qlnrpl�kvl{w��p�ytmzy{|}�
�rzp�mrwqr��k
��m�ql�pmr
uqrzp�mrwqr�v����m��lytmzy{|}�
����prtys��r����svl{w��p�ytmzy{|�
�k�rrprt
j��kpl��pmrs
u�k�rrprt���v����m��lytmzy{|}�
�{�kplnq�k�nqr�{p�pqsvl{w��p�ytmzy{|�
�h��vl{w��p�ytmzy{|�
ghi
jklmnmk
oplqrsprt
ujklmnmkvnmwqmxxplqytmzy{|}
��f
���nq�prq
�qrsmr
u|�qrsmrv����m��lytmzy{|}
~������f
���
oplqrsprt
jl�
j��kpl��pmr�
��qwpsqs
kplqrsq
���kpl��pmr
xm�
�qzpq�

� ¡¢£¤¥¦
§̈£©
ª«©© ¬«
 ©
©«¥¢
®̄¤ª
¤¡¢©£°«
±¤¡̄
¤̄¬ ¥£² ¢£¤¥³


µ́¶·µ́¶́ ¹̧º»¼¹½½¾º¾½¿

À¤¤°
 ®¢«̄¥¤¤¥Á


§̈ ¥Â
±¤¡
®¤̄
Ã̄¤Ä£°£¥¬
±¤¡̄
©¡Åª£©©£¤¥
¤¥
¢̈«
 Å¤Ä«
Ã̄«ª£©«©³
Æ Ä£¥¬
©« ̄Ç̈«°
¤¡̄
° ¢ Å ©«©Á
«
Ç ¥
®£¥°
¥¤
̄«Ç«¥¢
̄«Ç¤̄°
¤®
 ¥±
Èªª£¬̄ ¢£¤¥
¤®®«¥Ç«©
£¥
̄«É ¢£¤¥
¢¤
¢̈«
 Å¤Ä«
Ã̄«ª£©«©Á
¢̈«̄«®¤̄«
Èªª£¬̄ ¢£¤¥
Ê¥®¤̄Ç«ª«¥¢
£ÉÉ
¥¤¢
Å«
ª Â£¥¬
 ¥±
̄«Ã̄«©«¥¢ ¢£¤¥©
 ¢
¢̈£©
¢£ª«³


Ë«¬ ̄°©

Ì ¡É
Í±¥¢«̄




bcdef
lv�mkprqy{|
ulv�mkprqy{|}

~���f
�Î
�{k�
����
�Ï���
�df
lmwwq�lp�kv����m��lytmzy{|�
hm{�nqzqr�svl{w��p�y�mkplqy{|�
lmwwq�lp�kv����m��lytmzy{|�
��{kyn�r��vl{w��p�ytmzy{|
u����m�y�qlnrpl�kvl{w��p�ytmzy{|}�
qrzp�mrwqr�v����m��lytmzy{|�
����prtys��r����svl{w��p�ytmzy{|�
�k�rrprt���v����m��lytmzy{|�
�{�kplnq�k�nqr�{p�pqsvl{w��p�ytmzy{|�
�h��vl{w��p�ytmzy{|�
�klmnmkv
ulmwwq�lp�kv����m��lytmzy{|}�
hm{�nqzqr�svl{w��p�y�mkplqy{|�
lmwwq�lp�kv����m��lytmzy{|�
��{kyn�r��vl{w��p�ytmzy{|
u����m�y�qlnrpl�kvl{w��p�ytmzy{|}�


Page 63

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



�������� 	
�
��
	����������������������������������� !���"�����#���$�����������%$����������������$!���"�����&������ &"������"��������"��!'������"����������"�����"��(���!���)����)*+,-��.�/�0���1+���22��1/-31.�0���4��1��5�44�-1��-�1+��,6�7��835�-9����73��6��/:+1�0���,�;�6.�,4�46����0�1+��2/6835�<.���8��,9�=-73��-4�-1,8�>��1�513�-�?�>/6835�@�,81+�*�,4�A�,;���39�1��2��1�51�1+��:�-��,8�2/68350��4�-/39,-5�9�,-;�0/�1+���5�-9/81��-�2��439�9�835�-5�9��+���6.�5�-;313�-9�,���342�9�;�1��91�22/6835�-/39,-5��,-;,�0/�1+���6��,5+��0��-���0�1+��835�-93-:��6B�5137�9��C�+,7��6��-�5�-9/813-:��-�1+�9�,22835,13�-9�,-;�+,7�������;��31+�-/4���/9�,:�-53�9D�3-;/91�3�9�,-;���93;�-19�0����7���	E�.�,�9�,-;�00���;�9/31,68��,;735��,9�,�F/,8303�;�,5�/91353,-�3-�1+��03�8;��0�-�39��5�-1��8�,-;�,5�/91359�*+��-,1/����0�5�-;313�-3-:�,�2��439�9�835�-9��:��9���88�6�.�-;�1+��2��7393�-9��0�1+��A35�-93-:�G51

E�,-;�319��6B�5137�9�@���7���31�;��9��00��,��,.�1��1,5�8��-�39��-/39,-5��1+��/:+�1+�3428�4�-1,13�-��0�5�-;313�-9�-�,�835�-9�1+,1���/8;��00�5137�8.�4,���-�39��,-;�91,1/1��.�-/39,-5�-�-�;�1��43-,68��/-;���1+��=-73��-4�-1,8�>��1�513�-�G51�	HH
�A,�:��95,8���7�-19�3-�1+�3��7��.�-,1/���,���8�/;�,-;�5,-�6����88�,11�-;�;�6.�	


I9��0�2��28�D�1+�.�388�,84�91�5��1,3-8.�;39�/21�1+�5+,�,51����0�,-�,��,�B/91�,9�,�-����/-�,.���/8;�,00�51�,-�,��,�0��428,-��,513731.��*+39�39�1+��9�8����,9�-��+.���91�3513�-9�1��1+��-�39��8�7�89�,-;�83431,13�-��0��7�-19�J5,2K39�342�9�;��-�,-.�835�-9���G88�835�-9�;�2��439�9�,��/-;�L,�����3-�M/�-�99�1+,1+,7��N�7�-1I�5�-;313�-9�-�1+�3��835�-9���388�+,7��,�4,O34/4��0�1+���P0�/���7�-19�2���5,8�-;,��.�,���*+39�39;/��1��1+����,9�-9,8��,;.�91,1�;��Q+38��C�,4�-�1�5�428�1�8.�,:,3-91�-/4���/9��7�-19�6�3-:�:�,-1�;D�C���/8;�+,7��1��6�5�-73-5�;�1+,1�-�����55/��3-:��7�-1���/8;�,00�51�1+��8�5,8�,4�-31.�,-;�319���93;�-19D�1+39�4�,-9�1+,1-��/-��,9�-,68��-�39��9+�/8;�6���31-�99�;�,1�����31+3-�1+��-�,��91���93;�-13,8�2��2��1.�*+39�6�3-:9�4��1��L,�����R,3;��9��+35+�39�-�1�3-�,�/-3F/��9�113-:�,-;�39�9/���/-;�;�6.���93;�-13,82��2��13�9�,-;�91���19�1+,1�5,-�:37���39��1��,5�/9135�5,-.�-3-:��00�519�1+,1�5,-��O,5��6,1��1+�931/,13�-��*+39�39��+�-�-�39����7��6��,1�9�93:-3035,-18.�3-�,-��-58�9�;�92,5��3-5��,93-:�1+��2��5�37�;7�8/4��C�,4�,�,���1+,1�,�8�5,8���93;�-1�0�81�1+��-��;�1����F/�91�,�2��439�9�835�-9����73����0�L,�����R,3;��9;/��1���O5�9937��-�39���4,-,13-:�0��4�1+��2��439�9�92�53035,88.�0��4�,428303�;�4/935�,-;�2,1��-9J9+�/13-:D��,39�;�7�35�9K�739313-:�1+��2��439�9�<,-.5�428,3-19+,7��6��-4,;��1��1+��5�/-538D5�/-5388��9�,-;�1+��<>�6.���93;�-19��-�S837��T1���1D�@�8����T1D�U�89�-�T1���1D�T1��8�T1���1D�G;�8,3;�T1���1D�G-9�-�T1���1�?�>,��.�T1���1��R�93;�-19��-�U�89�-�T1���1�,22�,��1��+,7��6��-�2,�135/8,�8.,00�51�;�6.�-�39��0��4�,428303�;�4/935�92�53035,88.�;/��1��1+��58�,��83-���0�931��1��1+��835�-9�;�2��439�9�M�����0���-5��C�+,7��3-58/;�;�,�5+��-�8�:.��0�4.�3-7�87�4�-1��31+�1+��5�428,3-,-19�,-;�1+��835�-9�;2��439�9VS+��-�8�:.�3-���92�51�1��-�39�V��WXYZ[\����� �]̂ _[̀abW�cdedafdg0��4�S837��T1���1��hWYZ[\����� �]̂ _[̀abW�cdedafdg0��4�,�9�5�-;���93;�-1��-�S837��91���1�iWXYZ[\����� �]ahd�jaWbdhhdg,9��O5�9937��,1�	V

@�9�6.�4.9�80���WX�ZkZhW����� �]̂ _[̀abW�cdedafdg0��4�S837��T1���1���:,�;3-:�,428303�;�</935�0��4�1+3�;5�428,3-,-1��lWX�ZkZhW�����P�]̂ _[̀abW�cdedafdg0��4�T1��8�T1���1���:,�;3-:�,428303�;�4/935��iWX�ZkZhW�����P&]ĉ [̀��dWWdc9�-1�1���>T�T1�7��U�,8��+3:+83:+13-:�-�39��5�428,3-19��hW�d_Wd̂ mdc����� e]̂ _[̀abW�cdedafdg0��4���93;�-1��-�@�8����T1���1���:,�;3-:�,428303�;�4/935�

Page 65

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



�������� 	
�
��
	��������������������������� �!�"#��$%!�&!�$�'�(�)%�*��+��"���(�	�%!,�-�
	�.	
�'/��!���$%��� �!$0!"$0!%�#�%!�%�(�$ ���� ���!10��$  1��2���134�'$(0��*�(% �#1��%��4�'3"�$(% �3��*$�1 "-��4�$*�#�2��'�"�4�"��� $#�(% �$(���0��# �%��%!��'1 $4�3"�-�#�2��'�%!��3��'$ � ��5�67��������8��9:�����;�<��=�>�(�	 %?1(��
	�2��'&"$*��)%���%�$(���0��# �%��%!��"��0��@A��(#�'3"$2$�#� 3������ - %�'�$( %�""�#�����67��������B��5��C����55�>�%�D3'E'1 $4�2��'��'3"$2$�#� 3����� ��1#$F"�����1(#�%��(����>67��������G�H7;���;�<��9:�����;�<��=�>�H;���B�:5���I�;������>67�������EG�J�;�����:����; ��*�#�1(#���%!��K(*$��('�(%�"�L��%�4%$�(�M4%�	NN
�)�4%$�(�DN��� $  1�#�%��%!��3��'$ � �&!�$�'�(�F-��'�$"��(#�3� %��(��
O�	��PL"�� ��)���M%%�4!�#�Q�%%��R�S��67�������E����J����6�<T�U�J<���P&"1F�V���#�'�'F��R��(� $%��.�O3'�%��#$ 41  � 4���(��(#(�$ ���?�4��!�#�4�''$%%�#�%���4W1$�$(0���(�$ ��4�( 1"%�(%�%���  �  �%!��(�$ ���(#�%!�$��"$'$%�%$�( ��X��67��������G�<��9:�����;�<��=�>�H;���������;�;�5�>�������B�:5���I�;���YZ��67:�������G�<��9:�����;�<��=�>�H;��������;>�;�5�>�������B�:5���I�;���YZ��67:�������G�<��9:�������H;�����H�7;���;�5�>�������B�:5���I�;������5�<����H�;J�;>Y[��67:�������G�<��9:�����;�<��=�>�H;�����;�5�>�������G�5���I�;���Y@�� ����21�%!����  1��(4� �%!�%�V������\�$#�� ��(#�$% �V���#�'�'F�� �4�1"#�4�'3"-��$%!�%!�$�41���(%�(�$ ��4�(#$%$�( ��(#�%!1 ���#14��%!��"$��"$!��#��2�(2��4�'�(%�1(#��� %�%1%��-�(1$ �(4�"�0$ "�%$�(/��]���1"#�!�*��%��F��4�(*$(4�#�%!�%�(��1(��� �(�F"���'3"$2$�#�(�$ ����1"#�F���1#$F"���%%!��(���� %��� $#�(%$�"���4�3%����(#�]�2$(#(���*$#�(4��%!�%�%!��4"1F�4�(�41���(%"-��4!$�*��%!$ �F� �#�(�%!��2�""��$(0�3�$(% ̂	�\�4�(%� 4���(� !��$(0 �P_��%F�""�̀�,1 $4R�!�*��$(#14�#���(1'F����2��� $#�(% �%����3��%�#"-4�'3"�$(�2��'�N� �3���%��!�1 �!�"# ��]�!�*��3�� �(�""-��$%(�  �#�%!��(�$ ��%��*�""$(0��(�%!���$(#�� �2���� �a��4��%� �'��	�b�'$"� ���-��(#�]�!�*��%��*�""�#�%��%!�������%���$%(�  �%!��(�$ ��2��'�%!�� 1���1(#$(0� %���% ��(#�$%4�(��("-�F��#� 4�$F�#�� �1(��� �(�F"���(#�$(%�1 $*��c�]�F�"$�*��%!��41���(%� �%��2�(�$ ��4�(#$%$�( ��(�%!��3��'$ � �"$4�( ��!�*��F��(�'$ 1(#�� %��#�(#�(���%%�'3% �!�*��F��(�'�#��%��4�(%�4%�'��%��#$ 41  �%!��4�(#$%$�( ����%!�$����"�*�(4�d)���+�%��	�̀�e�f�]�!�*�� 3���(�%��'�'F�� ��2�%!��4"1F��(#���W1� %�#�%!�%�%!�-� ������3��2�  $�(�"��3$($�(2��'��(��4�1 %$4��(0$(����� �%��%!���3%$�( �2��� 3������3"�4�'�(%/�%-3���(#�*�"1'�� �%%$(0 �$%!$(�%!��0��1(#��@!$ ���1"#�$#��""-�$(4"1#��(�$ ��'�� 1��'�(% ��(#���4�''�(#�%$�( �%�F��21�%!���$'3"�'�(%�#��V1%�]�!�*��!�#�(��$(#$4�%$�(�%!�%�%!$ �!� �F��(�1(#��%���(�ghij�klmnopqrqno�mstuqvqwtrqnox�yuz{qn|}�wn~~|oqwtrqno�vun~�r�z�ws|���t}�put�o�trrzorqno�rn�r�z���p�sq~qr�top�~noqrnuqo��onq}z�snwtss���|r�r�q}�vq�|uz�q}�uzsz{tor�rn��z{zor}��r�tr�rt�z��stwz�ztw���ztu��qz��|~~zuvz}r����z�w|uuzor�sqwzo}z�}rtrz}�r�tr�r�z��tuz�tssn�zp�|��rn��vn|u��nv�r�z}z�z{zor}�ztw���ztu�topr�q}�q}��|u�n}zv|s�t}�r�z}z�z{zor}�wto�wt|}z�z�wz}}q{z�onq}z�top�pq}u|�r�snwts�uz}qpzor}��r�zuzvnuz�tuzsq~qrzp�qo�otr|uz���zozuts�}�n�qo��nv�r�z�vnnr�tss�top�pt��rn�pt��twrq{qrqz}�pn�onr�wn~z�|opzu�r�zz{zor}��zu~qrrzp�top�r�zuzvnuz��n|sp��z�wst}}zp�t}�zqr�zu�rz~�nutu��z{zor}��������nu�uz�|stutwrq{qrqz}��z�|stu�pt��rn�pt��twrq{qrqz}�pn�onr��t{z�t�vq�zp�{ns|~z�tssn�t�sz��p���top�|opzu�r�z��o{quno~zortsyunrzwrqno��wr�������}zwrqno��������qr�}q~�s��}rtrz}r�tr���zuz�onq}z�z~qrrzp�vun~�t��uz~q}z}�pq}r|u�}r�z�t~zoqr��nu��|tsqr��nv�sqvz�nv�t�wst}}�nv��zu�~t�z}r��}�}|��zwr}��r�zo�t�onrqwz��}�tss���z�}zu{zp�uz�|quqo�r�z�t�trz~zor�nv�}|w��t�onq}z��o�uz}�zwr�nv�t~�sqvqzp�~|}qw�wn~qo��vun~��tuun���|���� zt�|z�¡nnr�tss�ws|���on�t|pq�sz�~|}qw�}�n|sp�z��qroz}}zp�qo}qpz�to��uz}qpzorqts��un�zur��r�tr�q}�|ouzt}not�sz�nu�r�q}��n|sp�sq�zs��wno}rqr|rz�t}rtr|rnu��o|q}towz���qw���z�tuz�sz�tss��n�sq�zp�rn�}zu{z�t��zwrqno�����o{quno~zorts�yunrzwrqno��wr�nrqwz�uz�|quqo��r�z�t�trz~zor�nv�t~�sqvqzp�~|}qw�

Page 66

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



�������� 	
�
��
	������������������������ �!�!�"�!����#����$������������!�$��!�$�%�������&!�&�!�'��(��!�����"�����"�)�%�$��*�%������(���%�+,%-.�-��/�����*�����0����$����$�*!���"!�1��������!�$��!�$�%�������!���&��!�0�2�$�'�*�������3�4��56%-����7�1���!�"!�1������1&��"��%�$&��/�!�89:;<=>�?�$$*1&����������$&��/�!$��!�������%����!�$������>9=:@A��!�+,%-�B�CD1���(�������!�$�%�������&!�&�!�'�8<>=>��:<A.�E�!%��0$���%��0$���%�$�!*��*!�$�3������/��'��1&��"'����$��2���!�2�!4�!��������%����'����0��%��������!��$����$���$���������3��%�%�!����2��'.������4�2������*������$��!�������$*!�������!�$�%���$���2����F6�F,%-��2�!��1����3����������!�4�%!��1$���������3��������!���11��%�%�G�!�%�E������:!0���$�����!�H*�!�1����"�!�*�%�$�*!4�%�$���&���%�!�%*��%�����'����.I�J�K��I�JLM��NLO��PQ�L��LRO�P�RPST��K�SRUT�LV�M��VWU�I��SQQ�V��JLKKX�U��LUU�RO�LRX�J�L�SRY�LROK��MSO��LRT���T�U��ZW�TUS�RT�UJLU�NLX�R��O�[W�UJ���PQL�S[SPLUS�R����[W�UJ���K��MSO��NX��\K��UST���RU�PJRSPLQ�NLUU��T�[���UJ��LWUJ��SUX�]SRO�̂�YL�OT���[[�������_RMS��RN�RULQ�̀��U�PUS�R�a�̀WVQSP�b�LQUJẀVQSP�̀��U�PUS�R�c��MSP�T
Page 67

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



�����������	
��
����	���	��	������������	��������	

��
���	�����	���	
����	��������	��������������������	� !"�!#� $%&&'()'*+,-�.�/012345�6789!:! 4��;;�5�����7!::9�<=8>88 ::�?����:7:!5�	������6��	@	�ABC/�/DEFGHDI/DBJK�*GHB/LBFHD�JLB�MNNOP�Q/LBFHD�RN�.�SOLHI*KJFDBQ�HT�DHFQ/�DUFQJDL/JBLGJE/D�*JGVPLJKLUBBJ�QBG//BPWJGGHXYFDYTUGD/QQPLUIWGFJKJMZ�M[*��
��\
�����\
	������	�������������@�	����������;���3+]̂�,_̀1àb,�,c+d2ef�BE�,_+b-,�1ê_31g2ef�0],2h	�@�������������;������;���������;�����\����������;�����i����������	
����������� ���!997���������\�����������������	���jk���i����������	
������������ ���!997A���l��������	��������	����	
� �������������	���;��@���	��	����������	�����m����A�������
���
����������A���������A����� �����������	

���������������������\��������\����
��;�����������	���A���A��;���	��\�������	�������;���@A���������������������\�����;����\��������;������������������	�������������@j��������	���������������	
� ��������������\�����@����\�����������������������;�����������	���	�@��;�	�\��������������	����������������@�����������	���	
���m����������	������	����l�����������;�����������A��������	

������
����;�	���;;�����	�@���
�	
�A��\�������	������������A����	�;���������m���@����
���
�n�opn777q����������	�@	�@���	
�A��������������	�;������;�����;�	��	�������l�	
���������������;���	��
���
�;����	���@	����������������;;���������������	;�����������������j��;�	�\��������������	����������������@�����������	���	
���m����������	������	����l�����������;�����������A�����@�����	
A���	@�������������\���������������	

���
�	
��������	�����������������	�;���������m���@���p"7A777jr�stuuvwx�yz{�t�|v}v{�{y�{~w�tuwt�t{��������y���uvxt��t�x��y{wx��t{uy�}�y��{~w��v{s~�wuw�t{s~v��t��tu�w�}suww������v{~��z}vs���t�v���{~uyz�~�t���v�vwx�}�wt�wu}���~v}�t}tzxv��wtuyz�x�{~w�{y���t�x��t}�|wu��w�sw}}v|w�tuyz�x��t�sz{{t�{uww{��y�tzxv��w��yv}w}~yz�x��w�xw{ws{wx�t{�{~w��wtuw}{�uw}vxw�{vt���uy�wu{�yz{}vxw�y���yzu���w|w�{�st�w�xtu��wtuy{~wu�{~t��}{t�xtux��t{s~w}�w{s��r{�v}�s�wtu�{~t{��yz�}v��v�vst�{����uwts~�{~v}�t�x��~v�w�r~t|w�sy�}vxwuwx�utv}v���{~v}�t{�{~w��vsw�}v���sy��v{{ww��r�~t|w�s~y}w��{y�z}w�yzu�}{t{z{yu��zv}t�sw��uyswxzuwt}�v{�v}��uw�zw�{��uwysszuuv����y��}v��v�vst�{�xzut{vy��t�x�|y�z�w�t�xv{�v|w}��yz�{v�w�{y�v���w�w�{s~t��w���yz��t��t}���~t{�v}�t�uwt}y�t��w�|y�z�w��yu�{~wts{v|v{vw}��{~w�t�}�wu�v}�}v�����{~t{�v{�}~yz�x��y{��w�tzxv��w�t{�{~w��wtuw}{�uw}vxw�{vt��uy�wu{�y��xtv���ts{v|v{vw}�yu���x��xzuv���y�w�y���yzu����wu�v{{wx�w|w�{}���tv�v���{~v}��yz�x�wt|w��yz�y�w�{y��uy}wsz{vy��t�x�w�zv��w�{�sy��v}st{vy��z�xwu��tuut�{�

Page 68

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



����������	
����	��	����������
��	�������	�����������������
	����	���	��������	������������	����	���������������	����������������������	����������������������������������
����
���
������	�����������	���	
��	���������������
	���	�
�
������	��
�������������	������������	�������������
��������������������	
�	�����
�������
�	������������	����������� ������������	������	����������������	���
��������������������	����������������!�
�����
��	����	���	������ ���������������"�������	�������������	��
����
���������
�������	��
���
��������������
�#	�
�������������$%&''�(&)*%+%,-.+&,/%,012�3+&0%40.&,�5�3672.4�8%1208
Page 69

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Katherine Benson

From: Ivor Churcher
Sent: 10 August 2021 16:09
To: Commercial Services
Subject: Barrow Rugby League Football Club-Review of License

Please see below a summary of Commercial Team Officers interactions with the DPS and Directors of Barrow Rugby 
League Football Club (Barrow Raiders) .  
 
 
With the Governments easing of restrictions for businesses the Commercial Team were advised that Barrow Rugby 
Football Club intended to utilize their pitch as an outdoor beer garden from the 3/6/2020. 
This was widely advertised in the press stating that it could facilitate up to 500 people. 
 
On 13/7/2020 I visited the premises to give advice on how the business could achieve compliance with the 
Coronavirus Regulations. 
At that time I was advised of an event which they were planning on 15/08/2020. This event was to facilitate up to 
1000 people. 
Due to the large numbers possibly attending this event and having received video footage showing lack of social 
distancing when the beer garden was in operation, it was felt necessary for the Director of Public Health for Cumbria 
to issue a Direction to impose restrictions to help prevent the spread of Coronavirus throughout the community in 
Barrow. 
 
On 16/8/2020 video footage and photographs of the event, clearly showing breaches of the direction which was 
issued to ensure Covid compliance, were received by the Commercial Team. 
 
On 24/8/2020 I visited Barrow Rugby Football Club to discuss the event and was advised that the organizers’ felt 
that it had been well run despite the evidence to the contrary. 
 
On 15/9/2020 Officers from the Commercial Team were advised of a funeral wake to be held at the grounds on 
18/9/20 and that 90 people were to attend. 
Advice was given to the DPS in relation to complying with Regulation 7&8 of the Coronavirus Regulations and the 
restrictions currently in place. 
 
On 14/04/2021 received evidence that a new marque which had been erected in the ground was not being used as 
an outside space – Warning letter sent to DPS advising operating with the marquee walls more than 50% enclosed 
breaches both The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Steps and Local Authority Enforcement 
Powers) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2021. 
Subsequently an e mail was received advising that marque would operate in compliance with outdoor 
requirements. 
 
Following a visit to the Sports Ground on the evening of 25/06/2021 by an Officer from the Commercial 
Team and a constable from Cumbria Police a Coronavirus Improvement Notice was issued relating to lack 
of QR codes and social distancing within enclosed spaces, such as the men’s toilets. A Fixed Penalty Notice 
was also issued as people were observed ordering and purchasing drinks from a bar within a marque 
which was enclosed. 
 
On 29/6/2021 a further visit was made by an officer from the Commercial Team and a Police Officer. At 
that time it was evident that there was no social distancing, tables had been pushed together and people 
were mixing from different groups. 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 6



2

All of the above presents a clear picture of lack of compliance and disregard for Public Safety which is one 
of the Licensing Objectives and I would therefore hope that you would take these issues into consideration 
. 
 
Please note I am making the above issues known as Commercial Team Leader within the Public Protection 
Services Dept , responsible for Health and Safety compliance within the Borough of Barrow‐in‐Furness. 
 
Yours sincerely 

Ivor Churcher Commercial Team Leader 
 

Public Protection Services  
Borough of Barrow-in-Furness 
Town Hall, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria LA14 2LD. 
Email: ichurcher@barrowbc.gov.uk 
Tel: (01229) 876547 
 

Page 72

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 6



���������	
����������������
����	
���	���������
��
������	������
���������	�����������	������	�������������
����������������� �!"�#$�#��% ��%&!"'�&$�"'�()�*���+ (,)&'�*�%*�*���-".�)'")+�(/0�.*"!�'$�)%1�-2$�3 �!�)*"()�(4�3,/-".�),"'%).�$�%)&�3 �!�)*"()�(4�. "1��%)&�&"'( &� $��%!��)(*�/��)�,3��-&�/2�*���3 �1"'��-".�).���(-&� 5��6��,)&� '*%)&�*�%*�*���%--�+�&�%.*'�*�%*��%!��+"!�)� "'��*(�*�"'� �!"�#��%!��/��)�&(.,1�)*�&�%'�4(--(#'7�8,/-".�9,"'%).��:�8%* ()'�% ��-�%!")+�*���3 �1"'�'�-%*��%*�)"+�*5�:����2�% ��)(*�&"'3� '")+�4 (1�*��� �'"&�)*"%-�% �%�")��"*�� �%�*"1�-2�( �;,"�*�4%'�"()5�:���� ��"'�)(�'*%44")+�4 (1�*���.-,/�%''"'*")+�")�*���&"'3� '%-�(4�.,'*(1� '�:�8�(3-��% ��, ")%*")+�%+%")'*�*���.�, .��#%--5�:�<,'".�"'�!� 2�-(,&�%)&�.,  �)*-2�4( �*���1%0( "*2�(4��!� 2�#��=�)&5�>?*�)&")+�*�"'�*(�%--(#�*���'�(#")+�(4�4"-1'�#"--�()-2��?%.� /%*��*���'"*,%*"()�:�<,'".�.()*"),�'�%4*� �*���@@�31�-".�)'��., 4�#�:�A"**� �B�+-%''�/(**-�'�B��13*2�.%)'�% ��-�4*�'* �#)�%. (''�*��� �'"&�)*"%-�'* ��*�/2�3%* ()'�:�8%* ()'�% ��.-�% -2�")*(?".%*�&$�%)&�'�(,-&�)(*��%!��/��)�'� !�&�%-.(�(-�CD)�(44�).��,)&� �*���A".�)'")+�D.*�EFFGH�I�'(1��% ��'* ,++-")+�*(�'*%)&�,3�%)&�% ��%"&�&��(1���J "1��%)&�K"'( &� �� :�8%* ()'�% ��-"**� ")+�()��?"*�(4�*���3 �1"'�'�:�8%* ()'�% ���?3('")+�*��1'�-!�'�*(�, ")%*��(,*'"&��*���3 �1"'�'�:�A% +��%1(,)*�(4�& ,)=�3%* ()'�% ��4"+�*")+�B% +,")+�% (,)&�*��� �'"&�)*"%-�'* ��*'������AD�#"--�%- �%&2�/��%#% ��*�%*�J,1/ "%�J()'*%/,-% 2��%!���)+%+�&�#"*�$�%)&�*%=�)��)4( .�1�)*�%.*"()�%+%")'*$�L%  (#�M%"&� '�")�N�3*�1/� �EFEF�,)&� �J(!"&�M�+,-%*"()'5�O�.%)�.()4" 1�*�%*�4(--(#")+�%�!"'"*�*(�*���3 �1"'�'�()�EP*��N�3*�1/� �EFEF�%�8�)%-*2�9(*".��#%'�"'',�&�4( �QJ()* %!�)�� �;," �1�)*'�*(��)', ��*�%*�*���.,'*(1� � �1%")'�'�%*�&�#�"-'*�( &� ")+�( �.()',1")+�4((&�( �& ")=�()�*���3 �1"'�'R���� ���%!��/��)�)(�4, *�� �8(-".��-�&�4")�'�"13('�&$�%-/�"*�*�� ��"'�%�1( �� �.�)*�J(,)."-�"13('�&�4")�$�%+%")� �-%*�&�*(�/ �%.��'�(4�J(!"&� �+,-%*"()'��S	�����
���������������J,1/ "%�J()'*%/,-% 2��%!��,)&� *%=�)�%)%-2'"'�(4� �3( *�&�. "1�'�%)&�")."&�)*'�")�%)&�% (,)&�J %!�)�8% =�")�*���-%'*�'"?�1()*�'�CD3 "-�T�D,+,'*�EFE@H5�����%)%-2'"'�.%)�/��4(,)&�")�%33�)&"?�()��%*�*����)&�(4�*�"'� �3( *5�

Page 73

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



���������	
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������
��������������������������������������������	������������������������������������������ !"���������������	���������������#����#������������������$�%��	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�������������������#���$�&����������������������������'��
�������������������������(��	��������������������������(��	$�)����������**���������������������������������������������������#$�+,-./0/.-1-23,���������������������������'����������������	�����������������������4�����������������������������������4������5����������������������$�)��������������������������������
����������������������������$�"����
�(�������#�������������������
��������������6������4��������������������������������������
������	������
���������������������������������$�)����������������������������������������������7�����	8����������
����������������������������9��������������������������������	�������������������	���������������������������������������	������������������������������9����$�:�������	
������������������������������������	���
����������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���
��������
���������������6���$����������������������������������	������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������
������������	������������������������	������4������5��������������������������
��������������������������������	$������������#��������9����������������������������������	����#������������
��������������������������������
�������������������������������	������$�;������������������������������������������������������������9�����������������������
�������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������#���#6�����������������������������$�;�����������������������������������������������������	����������	���������	��������
���	������������������������$�<-=./�>.?.@1,-�+,A3/B1-23,���������������������������������������������������������������#��������	�����������������������������������������4������5�������������������������������������������$�CD8�
�)�� ������5�����	�����)��D����%�����������������������������������#����������������������������������������	������$�������������������������������������9������	�����
����������������������������������������������	����������������������������	���	������������
���������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������$��

Page 74

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



��������	�
��	��
��
����������
���	���������������
�����
������
�������������������	�	���������	��������������	���������
������
����������������������������������
�����	���������	���
���	����������������
���	����������������������	�������	������	����������������������
�����������
�������	���������
���������������������	�������������������������� !����������"#���$���	��"%"&��	�	������������
����������������	����������	����������
����������������������������'$����&%���$���	���(�������	������������	������������������
����������������������
��	��	���������������)��������������������
��������
����������������������	��
�	�����*��	�	����	�	�	���������������������������������������	������������	���������������������������	����������������������	�	��	����
����������������
��	�����������
����������(�������	������������	�����		��������������������������������	������+�����'�
��	�	�������������������	�������
�����
��	����������*��������	���������
������
������������	�������	���
��	����
��	���������)������$���	���,�������	�
�������	�-./01234./�(�����	����
���	����	���
����������5���
��������
�������������������	����������������
��
������	�
�������������
���	��
�	������������6�����������������	���������������������������������	������������
�		������
��	�������	��
������	��
�����		��	��(���	��������
��
��������������	�����������������		�������������������7���������������
��������
��	�����
��	����	�������������������������	�������	��8�����������������	��
��������	�����������������	�����������������
�	�
����������������������������	������������������������	�����
��	�����������������������������
����������5���
���������6��	��������
������
����������	������������������������	���������������������
���������������	������	��������������
��
�������	������
��	���������	��������������������������	��������
��
����	����������������	�����9
��������	:���	��������������	�����������������
����	�����������������	�
�����������	��������������������������������
����	��������������	�������������������
��������������������	�������
���������	����8�������������������������������������	��������	;�	���	�	����������
	������	���	����������
��������	<�5����
�=��	��
��>�5����	��������������������	�	���������������?�@AB�CD�EFGDHDI�CJ�DGDBK�KLMDN�EFBILKLFBN�>�*�������������	��	�������������	���������������������������������6�������	�����?�OAHHFP�QALIDHN�EABBFK�EFBKHFR�DSHDNN�FT�UDFURD�LB�AHDAN�FH�UHDMLNDN�KVDJ�VAGD�BF�EFBKHFR�FGDH�>�*�����	����	����������������
�����		�	��������������	��	������
�	����	�?�WBVABELBS�BXMCDHN�FT�UHFTDNNLFBAR�YZ[�IFFH�NKATT�KF�MLKLSAKD�NXEV�LNNXDN�CJ�ILHDEKLBS�UDFURD�KF�D\LKN�ABI�DBNXHLBS�KVDJ�DSHDNN�LB�AB�FHIDHRJ�MABBDH]�>�5�����������������������	������
��
��������?� F̂K�LB�KVD�EFBKHFR�FT�OAHHFP�QALIDHN_�UHFGLIDI�NXTTLELDBK�KFLRDK�TAELRLKLDN�AHD�AGALRACRD�FBNLKD�>�`�	�
��	��������������
����������������a����������������������+������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
����������	���������

Page 75

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



���������	
�	�����������	�����	����	��	����������������������������������	�	�����������������	���������������	������������������ ���!��"# !$� %!�&&�'(�)��!��!���$#!*����������	
�	��������������+�+������	��������	���+	����,����	������������������-���	�����+�	����.��//01�������2�  !$�3�4)"���5�  )!��3�!(' 6��"���"$!�)!# �� $!*��"�$���� %!�$!��7!� �")�� $!! �56�'" $������8���+��,����.	����������	��������9:;�������������������,��	���+�����	�������	���	���+�����+�	������	���	��	��	��	�,�������.	����,����������	�	�+���.	�	��������	�����<	�����=���>" $����"$!��)!"$)6��� �?��" !7@�"�7��%��)7��� �%"A!�5!!���!$A!7�")��%�)�BC���##!��!���7!$� %!�2��!����4�C� �DEEFG�H���(!�"$!�� $�44)��4� ��� "�7��'�"�7�"$!�"�7!7�%�(!���I������+��+	����,������	������	������	��	�	�����������	��	���+���.	�����	��.����.�	��	���+	=��J$�(!�"�7�K���$7!$�� ��>" $����"$!�)�  !$��4����!?� ��#� %!�'$!(��!����8���+��,����.	����������	��������9:;�������������������,��	���+�����	�������	���	����	����,�����+�	������	���	��	��	��	�,��������>" $����"$!�!?'����4� %!(�!)A!�� ���$��" !��� ��7!� %!�'$!(��!����L�������	�+����������M����<�N���	����������	�������+�	�������	����+�����	����	�������.�	������	���2"$4!�"(��� ��#�7$��O�'" $����"$!�#�4% ��4�3"$4���4�"$���7� %!�$!��7!� �")�� $!! ����;����,�M����<�N���	���+������.	�	����	������.�	������	��+����������	���	����	���	����	��	����	�����	���	����	����	��	������.�	�����	������,���������P�+����,���
����������������������	�<����	��������Q!�"�O��*)!74!� %!�'��� �A!��('"� � %!��)�5�%"����� %!� �*���#�R"$$�*@�"�7� %!$!�"$!�("�6�'"$ �!$�"4!���!�� %" �5!�!#� �#$�(� %!�$���((��� 6�*�$OS�T��$!A�!*��4� %!�$�)��!��!@�*!��!!7� ��� $�O!�"�5")"��!�5! *!!�� %!�!? $"�����!��� �5$��4�@�"�7� %!�*�7!$�5!�!#� ��#�"��!� !$ "��(!� �)��!��!S�U%!�A�!*��#�J�(5$�"�J��� "5�)"$6���� %" � %���$!A�!*��%��)7��!!O� �V���W!(��7�R"$$�*�W"�7!$���#� %!�$��5)�4" ����� ���'%�)7� %!�2��!����4�X5Y!� �A!�Z����T('$�A!���((����" ����"�7����'!$" ����5! *!!�� %!�� " � �$6�5�7�!��"�7� %!��)�5Z���T��$!"�!� %!���(5!$���#�'$�#!�����")�[TC�7��$�� "##� ��(� �4" !�"4"��� ���(!��#� %!�!�����!�@��S!S�("�"4!(!� ��#�7$��O�'" $���@�!Y!� ������#�7���$7!$)6�'!$����@�("�"4!���4$!���"�7�!4$!��@�$!(�A")��#�7$��O��4���� "��!$�3$!�!' "�)!��#$�(� %��!�)!"A��4Z���\���$!� %!��)�5�"$!���4���"� ��#� %!�$��5)�4" ����� �� %!�$��!�4%5��$����� %!���((��� 6S����U3[�' ��"  �>!"$("��� � &&3]3DED&

Page 76

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



� ����������	�
������������������������������������������ ! "���#$%&%#���#�������$�����'��
���()�����*%+�&���'%������
�������#����,��

Page 77

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



�
����������	�
���
�����������������
������������

��������
	��� ������ ���� ����� ����� ���� !� "#!�����!�$%#&����'�(�)�#���$�*�)��#�+��!��� $� $� ,� $� $� ,���!�$%#&����'�(�)�#���$�-�� ��&�� $� $� ,� ,� $� .��  ���!� $� $� $� $� ,� ,�/#�&����0#��%�1�!�2/#���� �� ,� $� $� $� $� ,�"#!��� ,� $� .� ,� ,� 3����!�$ #&����'�(�)�#���4�*�)��#�+��!��5�6�7��#�!�#1���8���&(�#1�/#)�9��� !��&!�#� ����!�$ #&����'�(�)�#���4�-�� ��&�5�6�:#&����� �9��!�&#+����������8#�!�!(���#� ���!&�1�#+�!(����#��9;�6�7��#�!�#1�+�+8�� �#1�!(����8��&� !�������!(����#��9<��#� ����9���!!����#11�1���=#�> ;���  ���!5�6�������!!��9�9�1�#�!�9� >����#�!����8������  ���!�9��!�!(����#��9�!(�����)�#� ����(!;��/#�&����1#��%�1�!�2/#���� �5�6�0�+�����!�0?@�8����)�9�!#�(�)��8���� ��>�9�4�!� !�&�+��8�&>�����!�)��8�!�9#&!#� ��9)� �9�������(��( �=#��9�A!� (#=�#��!(��!� !;���������B����C�

Page 78

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



����������	��
������
���������������
�������������������������������������������
���
��������
���������������������
�������������������	��
������
����	������������������
���
������
��
����������
��	����
�	�����������������������
�������� !�"��������������������
�������������#���	�����������������
$��%��
����	��������������������
$��%���&'��(')*�)+�,��,�-����
�������������������
��
�.��/�
�0���#��
�����
1�� 2�.��/��3�����#�2�3�����3�����#��2�4���%�5��
��4�%#�2�6����3�����#�2�7�����3�����#�2�5����3������2��
��
�3������2�5������3������2�8�
��3������2�9����
�3������2�:��
�%�3������2�6�
��
����3������2�5�����3������2�5�
������:����;�5�
������:������0�����

�

Page 79

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



����� ������ ��	� 
��� 
��	� ������� ���������������������� ��!"���#� �"��$������ �� �� %� �� �� %����������������� ��!"���&!�'����� (� %� )� )� �� %%���*�+�������,� �� -� -� .� �� /����������������� ��!"���0�"'����� �� %� �� %� �� (��''�!��� 1� %� (� (� (� %2���*�+�������,� -� �� �� .� �� 3��!"4��"5�&���67�����4� �� %� %� (� �� )�6�$�4����8"�$�����9���"� %� (� %� (� �� :�6"!4'�9;;����'� �� %� �� �� �� %�<�"�''$���=8"�$����� �� %� �� �� �� %�9���"�8"�$�� (� %� �� �� �� 1�0!>����9"?�"�9;;����'� �� (� 1� �� �� @�A"��?�B����� C� %%� %(� %%� (� ))��
Page 80

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



  

Barrow Rugby Football Club – Review of Premises Licence. 

 

I am responding on behalf of the Licensing Authority, a Responsible Authority under 

the Licence Act 2003. 
  
On the 2nd March 2021, Katherine Benson (KB), Licensing Officer, Barrow Borough 

Council met with Mr Steve Neale (SN) from Barrow Rugby (BR) and discussed and 

agreed an action plan.  A summary of the meeting was confirmed by email to Mr 

Neale and is summarised below, along with the agreed action plan. 
 

o Rugby matches are set to re-start in May & Barrow Rugby hope to allow 
crowds in when permitted. 

o Not initially opening the inside bar but will review nearer the time. 
o intend to re-start the beer garden from 12 April 2021 when outside areas are 

permitted to open. Mr Neale was aware it was full table service but would 
appreciate any guidance.  Katherine Benson briefly discussed that outside 
areas must not be substantially enclosed. 

o Longer term, Barrow Rugby intend to remove some terracing to allow for a 
semi-permanent marquee area which would be off the pitch. This would allow 
for seating. 

o Intend to hold a pop festival on 10th & 11th July 2021 – 2 day event with 
approx. 2500 people. Back up dates of 13th & 14th August. 

o Are thinking of having a large screen to show England matches. 
o KB discussed the provision of CCTV, SIA staff & attendance at Barwatch 
o SN confirmed that going forward they would be employing a bar manager & 

this person would be the DPS. 
o There was also a general discussion about underage sales, ensuring the 

premises was COVID secure and appropriately risk assessed. 
 

Action By who When 

Guidance on re-opening KB March 2021 
COMPLETE 

Premises plans require updating (see attached guidance on 
plans) 

SN April 2021 
INCOMPLETE 

Provision of CCTV at the premises SN April 2021 

Attendance at Barwatch SN/KB – KB 
to email co-
ordinator 

March 2021 

Provision of SIA staff SN From re-
opening & 
throughout 
spring/summer 
COMPLETE 

Licence requires minor variation to update conditions around 
CCTV, SIA staff & plans 

SN April/May 
2021 
INCOMPLETE 

Change of DPS SN As appropriate 

  

On the 3rd June 2021 Licensing Officers visited the premises and no issues were raised. 

However, Barrow Rugby confirmed that they would be showing films on the big screen 

which they had acquired for the Euros. Mr Neale was advised by Licensing Officers 

Page 81

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 8



that the showing of films at Barrow Rugby that weekend would require licensing, and 

if the showing of films at the weekend were to go ahead it would be unlawful and 

Barrow Rugby could be liable to prosecution.  

 

On the 18th June 2021 a written warning letter was sent to Mr Neale regarding the 

showing of films at the rugby ground.  The same day the Council received information 

that Barrow Rugby were doing bar service for the football event that night.  Mr Neale 

confirmed this was the case and that they do not do bar service when there is a rugby 

match on. Legal advice was sought around the specific exemptions claimed by Mr 

Neale. (APPENDIX A)  
  
Mr Neale submitted an application for a minor variation to add films on the 23rd June 

2021. It was determined that this application should be treated as a full variation and 

Mr Neale was advised appropriately. Mr Neale subsequently submitted a full variation 

to add films only to the premises licence and did not include the matters agreed in 

the action plan, such as updating the plans and updating conditions around CCTV 

and SIA Staff. 
  

The Licensing Authority have been made aware that a DJ event is being planned at 

Barrow Rugby on the 29th August 2021. Mr Neale has been advised that if the 

attendance is over 499 people, this will be classed as an event. 
  
The current Premises Licence has specific conditions relating to the number of events 

that can be held at Barrow Rugby. The premises are limited to 4 events in a calendar 

year. If the event of the 29th has an attendance of over 499, Barrow Rugby will have 

reached their permitted number for this year. 
  
The Licensing Authority are also aware that Barrow Rugby are planning a 3 day event; 

Oktoberfest from 15th – 17th October 2021, for up to 1,200 attendees per day, currently 

there have been over 2000 tickets sold. This event alone will be in breach of their 

licence conditions. 
  
Despite the Licensing Authority advising Mr Neale and Barrow Rugby Football Club Ltd 

on the requirements of Barrow Rugby’s licence conditions and activities, the club 

have failed to update their plans, address their conditions and have organised events 

in breach of the conditions.  
  
I trust the Licensing Sub-Committee will take the approach to regulation and 

compliance into consideration, when reviewing the premises licence. 
  
Steph Cordon 
Director of People & Place 

Barrow Borough Council 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 8



APPENDIX A – Legal Advice 

 
The requirement to provide table service. 

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Steps) (England) Regulations 2021 and 

particular to Part 2 of Schedule 3 of these regulations. Part 2 deals with the Closure of, and 

restrictions on, businesses. 

For ease Sections 7 and 9 are reproduced below and highlighted are the specific sections. 

For the purpose of these sections Barrow Rugby Football Club are a restricted business or 

service of a kind defined in Section 9(3), by virtue of operating a licenced premises under the 

Licensing Act 2003 (a bar / public house). 

Section 7(5) requires that where a restricted business or restricted service (“business A” The 

Bar ) forms part of a larger business (“business B” The Rugby Stadium)— 

(a) sub-paragraph (1)(a) does not apply to the service of food or drink if the 

condition in sub-paragraph (6) is met; 

(b) the person responsible for carrying on business B otherwise complies with the 

requirement in sub-paragraph (1) or (2) if that person complies with the requirement 

in relation to business A. 

Sub-paragraph (6) The condition in this sub-paragraph is met (subject to sub-paragraph (7)) 

if— 

(a) business B is a cinema, theatre, concert hall or sportsground, 

(b) the food or drink is ordered by a customer who has a ticket for an exhibition of a 

film, a performance or an event of training or competition at the venue,  and 

(c) the food or drink is served to the customer to consume in the area where the 

audience is seated at the venue to watch the exhibition, performance or event, 

  

It is our interpretation that when the premises are operating as a Sportsground on match days 

(where there is an event of training or competition), a person can go to a bar and purchase 

alcohol to consume seated in the stadium.  

However, when operating as a bar, the restricted business or service (Bar / Pub), and there is 

no event of training or competition, the condition in Section 7(6) is not met and therefore table 

service must be provided.  

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Restrictions on service of food and drink for consumption on the premises 

7.—(1) A person responsible for carrying on a restricted business, or providing a restricted service, in the 

Step 3 area which serves alcohol for consumption on the premises may sell food or drink for consumption 

on the premises only if— 

Page 83

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 8

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2021/364/schedule/3


(a)the food or drink is ordered by, and served to, a customer who is seated on the 

premises, and 

(b)the person takes all reasonable steps to ensure that the customer remains seated 

whilst consuming the food or drink on the premises. 

(2) A person responsible for carrying on a restricted business, or providing a restricted service, in the Step 3 

area which does not serve alcohol for consumption on the premises may sell food or drink for consumption 

on the premises only if the person takes all reasonable steps to ensure that the customer remains seated 

whilst consuming the food or drink on the premises. 

(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraphs (1) and (2), an area adjacent to the premises of the restricted 

business or restricted service, where seating is made available for its customers (whether or not by the 

business or the provider of the service), or which its customers habitually use for consumption of food or 

drink served by the business or service, is to be treated as part of the premises of that business or service. 

(4) Sub-paragraph (3) does not apply where the restricted business or services is situated or are provided— 

(a) at a motorway service area, or 

(b) within a part of— 

(i)an airport or maritime port, or 

(ii)the international rail terminal area within the vicinity of Cheriton, 

Folkestone (as referred to in section 1(7)(b) of the Channel Tunnel Act 

1987 F31), 

and that part of the airport, maritime port or terminal area is accessible between the 

restricted hours to passengers, crew or other authorised persons but not to members of the 

general public. 

(5) Where a restricted business or restricted service (“business A”) forms part of a larger business 

(“business B”)— 

(a)sub-paragraph (1)(a) does not apply to the service of food or drink if the condition 

in sub-paragraph (6) is met; 

(b)the person responsible for carrying on business B otherwise complies with the 

requirement in sub-paragraph (1) or (2) if that person complies with the requirement 

in relation to business A. 

(6) The condition in this sub-paragraph is met (subject to sub-paragraph (7)) if— 

(a) business B is a cinema, theatre, concert hall or sportsground, 

(b) the food or drink is ordered by a customer who has a ticket for an exhibition of a 

film, a performance or an event of training or competition at the venue, and 

(c) the food or drink is served to the customer to consume in the area where the 

audience is seated at the venue to watch the exhibition, performance or event.  

Page 84

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 8

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2021/364/schedule/3#commentary-c24473211


(7) The condition in sub-paragraph (6) is not satisfied where a customer has a seat in a corporate box. 

(8) In this paragraph “restricted business” and “restricted service” means a business or service 

which— 

(a) is of a kind specified in paragraph 9(3), or 

(b) is carried on from, or provided at, premises of a kind specified in paragraph 9(3). 

(9) Sub-paragraphs (1) and (2) do not apply in relation to any premises for which they are disapplied in a 

direction made by the Secretary of State under regulation 9. 

  

Restricted businesses and services for purposes of paragraph 6 and 7 

9.—(1) The following are restricted businesses and restricted services for the purposes of paragraph 6— 

(a) nightclubs; 

(b)dance halls; 

(c)discotheques; 

(d)any other venue which— 

(i)opens at night, 

(ii)has a dance floor or other space for dancing by members of the public (and for these 

purposes members of the venue in question are to be considered members of the 

public), and 

(iii)provides music, whether live or recorded, for dancing; 

(e)sexual entertainment venues; 

(f)hostess bars; 

(g)any business which provides, whether for payment or otherwise— 

(i)a waterpipe to be used for the consumption of tobacco or any other substance on the 

premises, or 

(ii)a device to be used for the recreational inhalation of nicotine or any other substance 

on the premises. 

(2) A business or service does not fall within sub-paragraph (1)(b), (c) or (d) if it ceases to provide music 

and dancing. 

(3) The restricted businesses and restricted services for the purposes of paragraph 7 are— 

(a)restaurants, including restaurants and dining rooms in hotels or members' clubs; 

(b)cafes, including workplace canteens, but not including— 

(i)cafes or canteens at a hospital or care home, 

(ii)cafes or canteens at a school, a provider of post-16 education or training (as defined 

in paragraph (e) of the definition of “relevant institution” in paragraph 1(8) of 

Page 85

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 8



Schedule 17 to the Coronavirus Act 2020) or educational accommodation for students 

attending higher education courses, 

(iii)cafes or canteens at a higher education provider, where there is no practical 

alternative for staff and students at that institution to obtain food or drink, and alcohol 

is not served for consumption on the premises, 

(iv)canteens at criminal justice accommodation, immigration detention 

accommodation or an establishment intended for use for Her Majesty’s armed forces 

or for the purposes of the Department of the Secretary of State responsible for 

defence, 

(v)workplace canteens where there is no practical alternative for staff at that 

workplace to obtain food or drink and alcohol is not served for consumption on the 

premises, or 

(vi)services providing food or drink to the homeless; 

(c) bars, including bars in hotels or members' clubs; 

(d) public houses; 

(e) social clubs; 

(f) casinos. 

  
 

Page 86

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 8



Page 87

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 9



Page 88

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 9



Page 89

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 10



Page 90

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 10



Page 91

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 10



Page 92

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 10



Page 93

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 11



Page 94

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 11



Page 95

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 12



Page 96

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 12



Page 97

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 13



Page 98

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 13



Page 99

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 14



Page 102

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 14



Page 103

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 15



Page 104

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 15



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ����
�����
������������� !�"��#��$%"$��&'�	�� �(
)�*���
�(��
��+ ,-� ."���/%�#�
��/0�%��'123�4�� 5�+
6#//"7
/#�8�/�
9/������
/�0��7:;<=>?@A
BC>D
EFDD;GF
H;D
DF@=
IJ?E
?<=D>KF
L?<J
?JG;@>M;=>?@N


OFPP?
Q;=CFJ>@FR

SL
I<PP
;KKJFDDNNN

TU
VFPD?@
D=JFF=

W;JJ?HX>@XY<J@FDD

:<EZJ>;

[\]̂
TBW

WFD=
JFG;JKD

[<_F
̀E>=C

aF=
b<=P??_
I?J
\@KJ?>K


cdefg
hijjklmnop
qklrnmks
tmijjklmnopuvolliwvmxyirxz{|
}~��g
�ln�o��
�zyzs�
���
����
�������
��
�eg
�z{k
qjn��
tpz{ksjn������u�i�jonpxmixz{|
}���~��g
���
�olliw
lon�kls
�lkjnsks
lkrnkw

�n
�z{k�
�
oj
�zs�
�in�y
��k
n�rn�ks
�il
��k
�nmk�sn�y
qzv hijjn��kk
�koln�y
n�
lkpo�ni�
�i
��k
lkrnkw
i�
�on�kls
pnmk�mkx
ho�
�iz
�pkosk
lks�i��
wn��
�izl
�zpp
o��lkssx
�o��
��o�{s
¡o��kln�k





�������	�
��	�	
¢��£�"/
��%�£��£*
¤¥¥�%�/¦
 
§12̈�4
§���4��	
'��©�4��

��1ª�
«
����¬�	�1�	���
®"7£
̄#��°
6#//"7±�£±²�/£���°
.��³/�#
�)� 
��́$
µ���̈�
�³�£�"£!³#//"7³%$*"0$��
¶
-�̈�
¢(���,¦
·̧¹º· 
»2�̈��
(̧ ·̧(,º�·��
cdefg
�z{k
qjn��
tpz{ksjn������u�i�jonpxmixz{|

}~��g
�¼
½zp�
����
�¾���
�eg
hijjklmnop
qklrnmks
tmijjklmnopuvolliwvmxyirxz{|
}���~��g
�olliw
lon�kls
�lkjnsks
lkrnkw
:;<=>?@A
BC>D
EFDD;GF
H;D
DF@=
IJ?E
?<=D>KF
L?<J
?JG;@>M;=>?@N


si��is�sjol�vo��klk��

�kppi�



Page 105

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 16



�

��������	
�������	��������������������������	���������������

�����������������	�������������������������������� !�����"������������	�	������"��������������������#������������������	�������������	���������	��������

��������� �����	�������$�����������������������������������	����	�	�� �����������!������"����������
�������	�%�����	�����	�����������������"�������	������	��������������������"�������
����������������	��!�&����	�����������������������
��
����������	���
�������������������������������������������������
����	���	������	����������	������������������������������������!����������	���'� ��(������)���*����� ������	��	��+�������������������������	�����
���,�"�����!�������������"������������������	���"����������

�	������������������� ���������
�����!�+�������������������������	�����
���,�"�����!�������������"������������������	���"����������

�	������������������� ���������
�����!�
Page 106

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 16



Page 107

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 17



Page 108

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 17



Page 109

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 17



Page 110

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 17



Page 111

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 17



Page 112

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 17



Page 113

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 89 

11. Reviews 

The review process 

11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club 

premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems 

associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises 

licence or club premises certificate. 

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a 

responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the 

licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any 

of the four licensing objectives. 

11.3 An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing 

authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if 

the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance 

that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are 

outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK 

or the licensing authority’s electronic facility. 

11.4 In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it 

relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or 

disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its 

determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the 

basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder. 

11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises 

licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply 

for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene 

early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected 

that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for 

reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These 

individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their 

own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to 

expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls 

within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate 

steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual 

exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is 

reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the 

area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review. 

11.6 Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies 

for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved in this 

process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined 

previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing 

authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a 

separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should 

achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to 

9.19 of this Guidance. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 18



90 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

11.7 In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect 

of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to 

the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation 

of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating 

to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town 

centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be 

positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow 

for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of 

complaints, including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its 

closing time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct 

incidents of crime and disorder around a particular public house. 

11.8 Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the authority 

may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of licensed 

premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the authority may also 

consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating to 

cumulative impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative 

impact policies can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance. 

11.9 Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent 

hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount 

to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing. 

Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees 

and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives 

this requirement. 

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems 

identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning 

of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise 

the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those 

concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a 

decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing 

objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-

operation. 

11.11 If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible 

authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade 

association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the 

complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance 

on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in 

Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10). 

Repetitious grounds of review 

11.12 A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to: 

•  a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to 

the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or 

•  representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or 

certificate was granted; or 

•  representations which would have been made when the application for the premises 

Page 116

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 18



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 91 

licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of 

a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval 

has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant. 

11.13 Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to 

review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence 

following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier 

occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as 

a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more 

than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation 

to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar 

grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order. 

11.14 The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to 

responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a 

licence or certificate within a 12 month period. 

11.15 When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible 

authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in 

Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The 

arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These 

regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website 

(www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is 

made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence 

supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative 

has therefore been able to prepare a response. 

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review 

11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may 

exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion 

of the licensing objectives. 

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further 

steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to 

prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to 

recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing 

authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring 

that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be 

issued in writing to the licence holder. 

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health 

officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in writing 

– that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing 

authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account 

when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may 

take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been 

required to pay for employing an illegal worker.  

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is 

appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 

Page 117

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 18



92 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions 

or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the 

hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 

•  exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 

the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 

incidental live and recorded music exemption)10; 

•  remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that 

the problems are the result of poor management; 

•  suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

•  revoke the licence. 

11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities 

should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the 

representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these 

causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response 

to address the causes of concern that instigated the review. 

11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and 

replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a 

problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management 

decisions made by that individual. 

11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company 

practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be 

an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review 

hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a 

succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of 

deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives. 

11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of 

licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up 

to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 

months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be 

expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives 

or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a 

weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise 

to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental 

financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and 

proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal 

working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, 

the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough 

action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed 

insufficient, to revoke the licence. 

  

                                                
10

 See chapter 15 in relation to the licensing of live and recorded music. 

Page 118

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 18



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 93 

Reviews arising in connection with crime 

11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected 

with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at 

the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen 

goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities 

do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter 

for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not 

therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the 

promotion of the crime prevention objective.  

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not 

part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations 

giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of 

any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal 

courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to 

determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on 

the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review 

follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go 

beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed 

evidence before them. 

11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises 

have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should 

be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime 

prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or 

associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of 

the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with 

the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is 

still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing 

authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives 

and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not 

those of the individual licence holder. 

11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises 

which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed 

premises: 

•  for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 

and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime; 

•  for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 

•  for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which 

does considerable damage to the industries affected; 

•  for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the 

health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of 

young people; 

•  for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 

•  by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 

•  as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs; 

Page 119

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 18



94 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 

•  for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their 

immigration status in the UK;  

•  for unlawful gambling; and 

•  for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. 

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, 

will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 

reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective 

is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected 

that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously 

considered. 

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal 
working compliance order 

11.29   Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the 

review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social 

Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance order under 

section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run 

concurrently and are as follows: 

•  when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a 
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review – the determination must 
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is 
received; 

•  the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after 
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received; 

•  notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first 
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice 
and the start of the hearing). 

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol 
to children 

11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly 

and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at 

the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme). 

Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a 

proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very 

quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and 

conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales 

of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing 

the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due 

diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of 

the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there 

has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been 

given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing 

authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate. 

Page 120

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 18



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 77 

10. Conditions attached to premises 
licences and club premises certificates 

General 

10.1 This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises 

licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set 

out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16). 

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and 

essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club 

premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the 

carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with 

any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on 

conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The 

courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are 

imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided. 

10.3 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate: 

proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail 

below. 

Proposed conditions 

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should 

emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or 

certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a 

premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps 

recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out 

the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other 

hours during which the premises will be open to the public. 

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an 

applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the 

applicant’s intention. 

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule 

10.6 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has 

been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made 

by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted 

subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the 

application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act. 

10.7 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as 

that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may 

lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important 

therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and 

unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must 

be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts. 

Page 121

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



78 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Imposed conditions 

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been 

exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a 

hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to 

impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to 

promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are 

aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to 

minor variations. 

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote 

the licensing objectives. 

Proportionality 

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type, 

location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. 

Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions 

which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions 

should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of 

CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be 

appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the 

prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night 

refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work 

checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any 

document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. 

Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect 

costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events 

that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. 

Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only 

those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises 

10.11 The Government acknowledges that the irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of 

alcoholic drinks may contribute to alcohol related harms. Where there is direct evidence 

of specific incidents of irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of alcoholic drinks 

linked to the undermining of one of the licensing objectives, licensing authorities should, 

in the exercise of their licensing functions (in particular, in relation to an application for 

the grant, variation or review of a premises licence), consider whether it is appropriate to 

impose conditions on licences that require the licence holder to comply with the 

Portman Group’s Retailer Alert Bulletins. This condition should be considered on a case 

by case basis and in the context of the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

10.12 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on 

the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure 

that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to 

those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products under the Code are 

considered by an Independent Complaints Panel and the Panel’s decisions are 

published on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If 

a product’s packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code, 

Page 122

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 79 

the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision 

and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point-of-

sale material, until there has been compliance with the decision. 

Hours of trading 

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the 

licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can 

conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy 

statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate 

opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with 

responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each 

application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving 

individual consideration to the merits of each application. 

10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable 

activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would 

undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with 

appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. 

10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for 

consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping 

unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those 

hours. 

The performance of plays 

10.16 The 2003 Act provides that other than for the purposes of public safety, conditions must 

not be attached to premises licences or club premises certificates authorising the 

performance of a play7 which attempt to censor or modify the content of plays in any 

way. Any such condition would be ultra vires the 2003 Act. 

Censorship 

10.17 In general, other than in the context of film classification for film exhibitions, licensing 

authorities should not use their powers under the 2003 Act to seek to impose conditions 

which censor the content of any form of regulated entertainment. This is not a proper 

function of licensing law and cannot be properly related to the licensing objectives. The 

content of regulated entertainment is a matter which is addressed by existing laws 

governing indecency and obscenity. Where the concern is about protecting children, 

their access should be restricted where appropriate. But no other limitation should 

normally be imposed. 

Major festivals and carnivals 

10.18 Licensing authorities should publicise the need for the organisers of major festivals and 

carnivals to approach them at the earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for 

licensing activities falling under the 2003 Act. For some events, the organisers may 

seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations 

                                                
7
 See chapter 15 for when a performance of a play is licensable. 

Page 123

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



80 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

within the premises. This would involve the preparation of a substantial operating 

schedule, and licensing authorities should offer advice and assistance about its 

preparation. 

10.19 For other events, applications for many connected premises licences may be made 

which in combination will represent a single festival. It is important that licensing 

authorities should publicise the need for proper co-ordination of such arrangements and 

will need to ensure that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the 

individual applications. 

10.20 Local authorities should bear in mind their ability to seek premises licences from the 

licensing authority for land or buildings under public ownership within the community in 

their own name.8 This could include, for example, village greens, market squares, 

promenades, community halls, local authority owned art centres and similar public areas 

where festivals and carnivals might take place.9  Performers and entertainers would 

then have no need to obtain a licence or give a temporary event notice themselves to 

enable them to give performances in these places, although they would need the 

permission of the local authority to put on the event. 

Fixed prices 

10.21 Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions promoting fixed 

prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club licences or club premises 

certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under current law. However, it is important 

to note that the mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 

Act prohibit a number of types of drinks promotions including where they give rise to a 

significant risk to any one of the four licensing objectives; the mandatory conditions also 

prohibit the sale of alcohol below the permitted price, as defined in paragraph 10.56. 

10.22 Where licensing authorities are asked by the police, other responsible authorities or 

other persons to impose restrictions on promotions in addition to those restricted by the 

mandatory conditions, they should consider each application on its individual merits, 

tailoring any conditions carefully to cover only irresponsible promotions in the particular 

and individual circumstances of any premises where these are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. In addition, when considering any relevant 

representations which demonstrate a clear causal link between sales promotions or 

price discounting and levels of crime and disorder on or near the premises, it would be 

appropriate for the licensing authority to consider the imposition of a new condition 

prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions or the discounting of prices of alcoholic 

beverages at those premises. However, before pursuing any form of restrictions at all, 

licensing authorities should take their own legal advice. 

  

                                                
8
 No licence is required for any entertainment provided by or on behalf of a local authority, see paragraphs 15.16-15.19 

9
 The register of public spaces: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensed-spaces-register 

Page 124

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 81 

Large capacity venues used exclusively or primarily for the 
“vertical” consumption of alcohol (HVVDs) 

10.23 Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume Vertical 

Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises with exceptionally high capacities, 

which are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and 

have little or no seating for patrons. Previous research has demonstrated that the 

environment within such establishments can have a significant bearing on the likelihood 

of crime and disorder. 

10.24 Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to premises licences for the promotion of 

the prevention of crime and disorder at such premises that require the premises to 

observe: 

•  a prescribed capacity; 

•  an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the capacity; and 

•  a requirement that security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or exemption are 

present to control entry for the purpose of compliance with the capacity limit and to 

deny entry to individuals who appear drunk or disorderly or both. 

Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol 
 

10.25 The 2003 Act provides for the following mandatory conditions to be included in every 

licence and/or club premises certificate in the circumstances specified. 

Designated premises supervisor 

10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, 

it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no 

designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the 

designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal 

licence has been suspended. 

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003 Act is 

to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence 

holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in 

force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running 

the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the 

designated premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application 

has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act (see Chapter 4 of this Guidance). 

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal 

licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However, 

the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible 

for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and 

conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives. 

  

Page 125

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



82 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Authorisation by personal licence holders 

10.29 In addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must require that 

every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. This in most instances will be the designated 

premises supervisor who must hold a valid personal licence. Any premises at which 

alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more personal licence holders. This does 

not mean that the condition should require the presence of the designated premises 

supervisor or any other personal licence holder on the premises at all times. 

10.30 Similarly, the fact that every supply of alcohol must be made under the authority of a 

personal licence holder does not mean that only personal licence holders can make 

sales or that they must be personally present at every transaction. A personal licence 

holder may authorise members of staff to make sales of alcohol but may be absent at 

times from the premises when a transaction takes place. However, the responsible 

personal licence holder may not be able to escape responsibility for the actions of 

anyone authorised to make sales. 

10.31 “Authorisation” does not imply direct supervision by a personal licence holder of each 

sale of alcohol. The question arises as to how sales can be authorised. Ultimately, 

whether an authorisation has been given is a question of fact that would have to be 

decided by the courts on the evidence before it in the course of a criminal prosecution. 

10.32 The following factors should be relevant in considering whether or not an authorisation 

has been given: 

•  the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be clearly 

identified; 

•  the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by the 

person who is authorised to supply alcohol; 

•  there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written 

statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and 

•  there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder to 

monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis. 

10.33 It is strongly recommended that personal licence holders give specific written 

authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to retail alcohol. A single written 

authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple sales over an unlimited period. This 

would assist personal licence holders in demonstrating due diligence should issues 

arise with enforcement authorities; and would protect employees if they themselves are 

challenged in respect of their authority to sell alcohol. 

10.34 Written authorisation is not a requirement of the 2003 Act and its absence alone could 

not give rise to enforcement action. 

10.35 It must be remembered that while the designated premises supervisor or a personal 

licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell alcohol in their absence, they are 

responsible for any sales that may be made. Similarly, the premises licence holder 

remains responsible for ensuring that licensing law and licence conditions are observed 

at the premises. 

Page 126

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 83 

Arrangements for the mandatory licence conditions 

10.36 The mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 Act (the 

conditions governing irresponsible promotions, dispensing alcohol directly into the 

mouth, provision of free tap water, age verification, small measures and the prohibition 

on sales of alcohol below the permitted price) do not have to be physically included in 

the licence or certificate but nonetheless will apply to every licence and certificate 

authorising the sale and supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The 

mandatory conditions set out in section 19 of the 2003 Act (the requirement for a DPS 

and for all sales to be made or authorised by a personal licence holder) do, however, 

have to be physically included in the licence. The mandatory licence conditions do not 

apply to activities (including the supply of alcohol) authorised by a temporary event 

notice. 

10.37 Whereas the initial mandatory conditions in section 19 of the 2003 Act are set out in 

Annex 1 of the licence, the additional mandatory conditions made under section 19A of 

the 2003 Act are treated as if they were included in existing licences and certificates on 

the date that those conditions came into force. 

10.38 Following their commencement, the mandatory conditions overrode any pre-existing 

conditions already included in a licence or certificate insofar as the mandatory 

conditions were identical to, or inconsistent with or more onerous than, any pre-existing 

conditions. It is not necessary to record on the face of existing licences and certificates 

the impact that the introduction of the mandatory conditions has had on pre-existing 

conditions. 

Irresponsible promotions 

10.39 Under this condition, the “responsible person” (defined in the 2003 Act as the holder of a 

premises licence, designated premises supervisor, a person aged 18 or over who is 

authorised to allow the sale or supply of alcohol by an under 18 or a member or officer 

of a club present on the club premises who can oversee the supply of alcohol) should 

be able to demonstrate that they have ensured that staff do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions. An irresponsible promotion is one that fits 

one of the descriptions below (or is substantially similar), is carried on for the purpose of 

encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The aim of 

the condition is to prohibit or restrict promotions which encourage people to drink more 

than they might ordinarily do and in a manner which undermines the licensing 

objectives. 

Drinking games 

10.40 Drinking games which require or encourage individuals to drink a quantity of alcohol 

within a time limit, or drink as much alcohol as possible within a time limit or otherwise, 

are prohibited. For example, this may include organised ‘drink downing’ competitions. 

This would not prevent the responsible person from requiring all drinks to be consumed 

or abandoned at, or before, the closing time of the premises. Nor does it necessarily 

prohibit ‘happy hours’ as long as these are not designed to encourage individuals to 

drink excessively or rapidly. 

  

Page 127

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



84 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Large quantities of alcohol for free or a fixed price 

10.41 Irresponsible promotions can include the provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities 

of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted price, where there is a significant risk that 

such a promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This 

includes alcohol provided to the public or to a group defined by a particular 

characteristic, for example, a promotion which offers women free drinks before a certain 

time or “all you can drink for £10”. Promotions can be designed with a particular group in 

mind (for example, over 65s). A common sense approach is encouraged, which may 

include specifying the quantity of alcohol included in it or not targeting a group which 

could become more vulnerable or present a greater risk of crime and disorder as a 

result of excessive alcohol consumption. 

Prizes and rewards 

10.42 The sale, supply or provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other item as a prize 

to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol can be within the 

definition of an irresponsible promotion, where there is a significant risk that such a 

promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This may include 

promotions under which free or discounted alcohol is offered as a part of the sale of 

alcohol, for example, “Buy one and get two free” and “Buy one cocktail and get a 

second cocktail for 25p”. This includes promotions which involve the provision of free or 

discounted alcohol within the same 24 hour period. 

Posters and flyers 

10.43 Irresponsible promotions can also include the sale or supply of alcohol in association 

with promotional materials on display in or around the premises, which can either be 

reasonably considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti social behaviour or 

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 

Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth 

10.44 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that no alcohol is dispensed 

directly into the mouth of a customer. For example, this may include drinking games 

such as the ‘dentist’s chair’ where a drink is poured continuously into the mouth of 

another individual and may also prevent a premises from allowing another body to 

promote its products by employing someone to dispense alcohol directly into customers’ 

mouths. An exception to this condition would be when an individual is unable to drink 

without assistance due to a disability. 

Free potable water 

10.45 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that free potable water is 

provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available on the premises. 

What is meant by reasonably available is a question of fact; for example, it would not be 

reasonable to expect free tap water to be available in premises for which the water 

supply had temporarily been lost because of a broken mains water supply. However, it 

may be reasonable to expect bottled water to be provided in such circumstances. 

  

Page 128

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 85 

Age verification 

10.46 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. This 

must as a minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible person (see 

paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on request, before 

being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and either a 

holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages licensed premises 

to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) hologram as their 

preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet 

the requirements of the mandatory condition. 

10.47 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

(in particular, staff who are involved in the supply of alcohol) are made aware of the 

existence and content of the age verification policy which applies by the premises. 

10.48 The designated premises supervisor (where there is one) must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. This 

means that the DPS has personal responsibility for ensuring that staff are not only 

aware of, but are also applying, the age verification policy. 

10.49 It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged, for premises to have an age verification policy 

which requires individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under an age 

greater than 18 to produce such identification on request. For example, if premises have 

a policy that requires any individual that appears to be under the age of 21 to produce 

identification that meets the criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable under the 

mandatory code. 

10.50 Licence holders should consider carefully what steps they are required to take to comply 

with the age verification requirements under the 2003 Act in relation to sales of alcohol 

made remotely. These include sales made online, by telephone and mail order sales, 

and alcohol delivery services. Each of these sales must comply with the requirements of 

the 2003 Act. The mandatory condition requires that age verification takes place before 

a person is served alcohol. Where alcohol is sold remotely (for example, online) or 

through a telephone transaction, the sale is made at this point but the alcohol is not 

actually served until it is delivered to the customer. Age verification measures (for 

example, online age verification) should be used to ensure that alcohol is not sold to any 

person under the age of 18. However, licence holders should also consider carefully 

what steps are appropriate to ensure that age verification takes place before the alcohol 

is served (i.e. physically delivered) to the customer to be satisfied that the customer is 

aged 18 or over. It is, therefore, the responsibility of the person serving or delivering the 

alcohol to ensure that age verification has taken place and that photo ID has been 

checked if the person appears to be less than 18 years of age. 

Smaller measures 

10.51 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) shall ensure that the following drinks, if 

sold or supplied on the premises, are available in the following measures: 

•  Beer or cider: ½ pint 

•  Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml 

•  Still wine in a glass: 125ml 

Page 129

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



86 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

10.52 As well as making the drinks available in the above measures, the responsible person 

must also make customers aware of the availability of these measures by displaying 

them on printed materials available to customers on the premises. This can include 

making their availability clear on menus and price lists, and ensuring that these are 

displayed in a prominent and conspicuous place in the relevant premises (for example, 

at the bar). Moreover, staff must make customers aware of the availability of small 

measures when customers do not request that they be sold alcohol in a particular 

measure. 

10.53 This condition does not apply if the drinks in question are sold or supplied having been 

made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container. For 

example, if beer is only available in pre-sealed bottles the requirement to make it 

available in 1/2 pints does not apply. 

10.54 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

are made aware of the application of this condition. 

Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price 

10.55 The relevant person (the holder of the premises licence, the designated premises 

supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, the personal licence holder who makes 

or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence, or any member or officer of a 

club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to 

prevent the supply in question) shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

10.56 The permitted price is defined as the aggregate of the duty chargeable in relation to the 

alcohol on the date of its sale or supply and the amount of that duty multiplied by a 

percentage which represents the rate of VAT chargeable in relation to the alcohol on the 

date of its sale or supply. Detailed guidance on how to make this calculation and a 

calculator to determine permitted prices for each product are available on the Home 

Office website. 

10.57 Where there is a change to the rate of duty or VAT applying to alcohol (for instance, 

following a Budget), the relevant person should ensure that the permitted price reflects 

the new rates within fourteen days of the introduction of the new rate. 

10.58 It is still permitted to sell alcohol using promotions (as long as they are compatible with 

any other licensing condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should 

ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. Detailed 

guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance document available on the 

Gov.uk website. 

Exhibition of films 

10.59 The 2003 Act provides that where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (currently only the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC)) or by the 

licensing authority itself. 

10.60 The effect of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act is to exempt adverts from the 

Page 130

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 87 

definition of regulated entertainment, but not exempt them from the definition of 

exhibition of a film. Since the above mandatory condition applies to ‘any film’, it is 

therefore applicable to the exhibition of adverts. 

Door supervision 

10.61 Under section 21 of the 2003 Act, when a condition is included in a premises licence 

that at specified times an individual must be present at the premises to carry out a 

security activity (as defined in section 21(3)(a) by reference to the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001 (“the 2001 Act”)), the licence must include a condition requiring that 

individual to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA”) under the 2001 

Act, or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 Act. 

10.62 A premises licence need not require a person to hold a licence granted by the SIA if that 

person benefits from an exemption under section 4 of the 2001 Act. For example, 

certain employees benefit from an exemption when carrying out conduct in connection 

with a certified sports ground (section 4(6) to (12)). Furthermore, in certain 

circumstances persons benefit from an exemption where they operate under the SIA’s 

Approved Contractor Scheme (section 15). 

10.63 Conditions under section 21 of the 2003 Act should only relate to individuals carrying 

out security activities defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. Therefore, they should 

only relate to an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies (certain manned guarding activities) and which is licensable conduct within the 

meaning of section 3(2) of that Act. The requirement does not relate to individuals 

performing non-security related activities, and section 21 should not be used in relation 

to any such activities. 

10.64 Section 21 of the 2003 Act continues to ensure that a premises licence need not impose 

such a requirement in relation to those licensed premises which the 2001 Act treats as 

unlicensed premises. Those are: 

•  premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence authorising a 

performance of a play or an exhibition of a film; 

•  casinos or bingo halls licensed under the Gambling Act 2005; 

•  premises where a club certificate is in force when activities are being carried on 

under the authority of that certificate. 

See paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act for full details. 

10.65 It should be noted, however, that the 2001 Act will require contractors and a small 

number of employees (those managing/supervising and those supplied under contract) 

to be licensed as manned guards (rather than door supervisors) when undertaking 

licensable conduct on premises to which paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies. 

10.66 It is therefore important that if a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out security activities (as defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act) 

this should be explicit, as should the mandatory condition for those individuals to hold 

an SIA licence or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 

Act. On the other hand, where a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out other activities (for example, activities related to safety or steward 

activities to organise, advise and direct members of the public), no mandatory condition 

Page 131

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



88 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

should be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act. In all cases it is important when 

determining whether or not a condition is to be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 

Act to consider whether the activities of any individual working in licensed premises fall 

within the definition of security activities in section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. (Regardless 

of whether a condition is imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act, under the 2001 Act 

the appropriate SIA licence must be held by any individual performing an activity for 

which they are licensable under that Act.) 

 

Page 132

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 19



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 123 

16. Regulated entertainment 

Types of regulated entertainment 

16.1 Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act sets out what activities are regarded as the provision of 

regulated entertainment and when they are licensable and those activities which are not 

and therefore exempt from the regulated entertainment regime. Changes to regulated 

entertainment are due to take effect on 6 April 2015. Therefore, up until that date you 

should refer to chapter 16 of the guidance published in October 2014. 

16.2 The descriptions of entertainment activities licensable under the 2003 Act are: 

•  a performance of a play; 

•  an exhibition of a film; 

•  an indoor sporting event; 

•  a boxing or wrestling entertainment; 

•  a performance of live music; 

•  any playing of recorded music; 

•  a performance of dance; and 

•  entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any playing of 

recorded music or a performance of dance. 

16.3 To be licensable, one or more of these activities needs to be provided for the purpose 

(at least partly) of entertaining an audience; has to be held on premises made available 

for the purpose of enabling that activity; and must also either: 

•  take place in the presence of a public audience, or 

•  where that activity takes place in private, be the subject of a charge made with a view 

to profit. 

16.4 Guidance around what constitutes audiences and private events is at paragraphs 16.11-

16.14. 

Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are 
not licensable 

16.5 There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other authorisation18) 

under the 2003 Act is not required. This Guidance cannot give examples of every 

eventuality or possible entertainment activity that is not licensable. However, the 

following activities are examples of entertainment which are not licensable: 

•  activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context; 

•  activities in places of public religious worship; 

•  education – teaching students to perform music or to dance; 

•  the demonstration of a product – for example, a guitar – in a music shop; 

•  the rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where no 

charge is made with a view to making a profit; 

                                                
18

 The word ‘licence’ is typically used as a reference to all forms of authorisation 

Page 133

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



124 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  Morris dancing (or similar)19; 

•  Incidental music – the performance of live music or the playing of recorded music if it 

is incidental to some other activity20; 

•  Incidental film – an exhibition of moving pictures if it is incidental to some other 

activity21; 

•  A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing; 

•  Garden fetes – or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private gain; 

•  Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art galleries; 

•  Television or radio broadcasts – as long as the programme is live and simultaneous; 

•  Vehicles in motion – at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or temporarily 

parked; 

•  Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis); 

•  Stand-up comedy; and 

•  Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors)22. 

16.6 As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act23, no licence is 

required for the following activities: 

•  Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 

provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

•  Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 

provided that the audience does not exceed 50024. 

•  Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community 

premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not 

exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is 

responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by 

age classification ratings. 

•  Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00 

on any day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000. 

•  Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or 

display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on 

any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. 

•  Live music: no licence permission is required for: 

–  a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 

on any premises. 

–  a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 

                                                
19

 Including any live music or playing of recorded music as an integral part of a performance of Morris dancing, or similar activity. 
20

 See paragraphs 16.57-16.61 
21

 See paragraphs 16.65-16.68 
22

 This was previously licensable under the 2003 Act until the commencement of the Live Music Act 2012. 
23

 The Live Music Act 2012 (“2012 Act”) http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/2; Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of 
Entertainment) (Amendment) Order 2013 (“2013 Order”) http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/1578/contents/made ; The 
Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 (“2014 Order”) 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/3253/introduction/made; and the Deregulation Act 2015 (“2015 Act”). 
24

 But see paragraphs 16.47 -16.48 in relation to dance that is adult entertainment and remains licensable. 

Page 134

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 125 

provided that the audience does not exceed 50025. 

–  a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in 

a workplace26 that does not have a licence, provided that the audience does 

not exceed 500. 

–  a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in 

a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 

premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided 

that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent 

for the performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 

–  a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at 

the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a 

hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 

organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) 

the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider 

for the hospital. 

•  Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 

–  any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 

provided that the audience does not exceed 50027. 

–  any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a 

church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, 

that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the 

audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the 

performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 

–  any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the 

non- residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a 

hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 

organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) 

the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care 

provider for the hospital. 

•  Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, with no limit on audience size for: 

–  any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where 

the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority; 

–  any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care 

provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care 

provider; 

–  any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the 

entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

–  any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) 

                                                
25

 Provided that a number of other important conditions are satisfied (see paragraphs 16.38-16.43). 
26

 The Live Music Act 2012 provides that if premises are licensed under the 2003 Act, they cannot also be treated as a 
workplace for the purpose of the 2012 Act. 
27

 Provided that a number of other important conditions are satisfied, see paragraphs 16.38-16.43. 

Page 135

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



126 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a 

moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and (b) that the 

travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 

consecutive days. 

16.7 The deregulatory changes mean that, for example, an indoor sporting event that takes 

place between 07.00 and 23.30 on a particular day is licensable in respect of activities 

taking place between 07.00-08.00 and 23.00-23.30. Similarly, where the audience for a 

performance of dance fluctuates, those activities are licensable if, and for so long as, 

the number of people in the audience exceeds 500. If organisers are uncertain as to 

audience sizes or if audience migration is likely28, it might be easier and more flexible to 

secure an appropriate authorisation. Examples of where a Temporary Event Notice 

(TEN)29 could still be required include if the activity is the playing of recorded music or 

the exhibition of a film that requires an authorisation; or if the entertainment is not 

authorised by an existing licence or certificate and its conditions. 

16.8 Of course, anyone involved in the organisation or provision of entertainment activities – 

whether or not any such activity is licensable under the 2003 Act – must comply with 

any applicable duties that may be imposed by other legislation relevant to the event 

(e.g. in areas such as crime and disorder, fire, health and safety, noise, nuisance and 

planning).30 Any such person should take steps to be aware of relevant best practice, 

and may find responsible authorities a useful source of expert support and advice. 

16.9 The various effects of the changes made to entertainment licensing by the set of 

deregulatory changes between 2012 and 201531 are described in greater detail in 

subsequent paragraphs: 

•  Music entertainment, see in particular paragraphs: 16.20-16.21; 16.26-16.33; and 

16.36-16.44; 

•  Plays, dance, and indoor sporting events, see in particular paragraphs: 16.34-16.35 

and 16.45-16.48; 

•  Local authority, hospital and school premises, see in particular paragraphs: 16.16-

16.20 

•  Community premises, see in particular paragraphs: 16.21-16.24 and 16.34-16.35 

•  Circuses, see in particular paragraph 16.25 

•  Boxing or wrestling entertainment, see in particular paragraphs: 16.49-16.51. 

  

                                                
28

 See paragraph 16.12 
29

 See chapter 7 
30

 See paragraphs 16.70-16.72 in relation to other licensing regimes 
31

 An entertainment activity may meet the conditions of more than one exemption 

Page 136

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 127 

General circumstances in which entertainment activities are 
licensable 

16.10 An authorisation for regulated entertainment is always required for entertainment 

activities that take place before 08.00 or after 23.00, unless exempted under any other 

provision of the 2003 Act, as amended32. 

Audience 

16.11 For the purposes of regulated entertainment, the term “audience” refers to any person 

for whose entertainment (at least in part) any licensable activities are provided. An 

audience member need not be, or want to be, entertained: what matters is that an 

audience is present33 and that the purpose of the licensable activity is (at least in part) 

intended to entertain any person present34. The audience will not include performers, 

together with any person who contributes technical skills in substantial support of a 

performer (for example, a sound engineer or stage technician), during any associated 

activities. This includes setting up before the entertainment, reasonable breaks 

(including intervals) between activities and packing up thereafter. Similarly, security staff 

and bar workers will not form part of the audience while undertaking their duties. 

16.12 More than one entertainment activity (or for a single activity, more than one 

performance or event) can be held concurrently, provided that the audience for each 

such performance or event does not exceed the threshold at which such a performance 

or event becomes licensable. In some circumstances, there will be a clear distinction 

between performances or events; for example, their taking place in separate rooms or 

on separate floors. However, organisers will have to ensure that audiences do not grow 

or migrate, so that the audience exceeds the relevant limit for any one performance or 

event at any time. If there is the possibility of audience migration, it might be easier and 

more flexible to secure an appropriate authorisation. 

Private events 

16.13 Events held in private are not licensable unless those attending are charged for the 

entertainment with a view to making a profit (including raising money for charity). For 

example, where a party is held for friends in a private dwelling featuring amplified live 

music, if a charge or contribution is made solely to cover the costs of the entertainment, 

the activity is not regulated entertainment. Similarly, any charge made to the organiser 

of a private event by musicians, other performers, or their agents does not of itself make 

that entertainment licensable – it would only do so if the guests attending were 

themselves charged by the organiser for that entertainment with a view to achieving a 

profit. The fact that this might inadvertently result in the organiser making a profit would 

be irrelevant, as long as there had not been an intention to make a profit. 

16.14 Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act also makes it clear that before entertainment is regarded as 

                                                
32

 See examples at paragraph 16.5 
33

 In some circumstances, such as un-ticketed live music events, a degree of judgement may be required as to whether persons 
are part of an audience.  Factors to consider could include whether a person is within the perimeter of the premises, the audible 
range of the performance, and their visibility of the entertainment. In order to meet the definition of an entertainment activity in 
the 2003 Act, the activity must take place in the presence of an audience and be provided for the purpose, or for purposes which 
include the purpose of, entertaining that audience. 
34

 For example, a darts championship competition hosted in part to entertain an audience could be a licensable activity, but a 
pub game of darts played for the enjoyment of the participants is not licensable. 

Page 137

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



128 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

being provided for consideration, a charge has to be: 

•  made by or on behalf of a person concerned with the organisation or management of 

the entertainment; and 

•  paid by or on behalf of some or all of the persons for whom the entertainment is 

provided. 

Circumstances in which entertainment activities are no longer 
licensable 

16.15 No licence is required for certain entertainment activities on specified premises, as 

follows: 

Local authorities, hospital healthcare providers and school proprietors: 
cross-entertainment activity exemption 

16.16 No licence is required for any entertainment provided by or on behalf of a local authority, 

health care provider, or school proprietor to the extent that it takes place on defined 

premises, between 08.00-23.00 on any day provided that: 

•  for entertainment provided by, or on behalf of, a local authority it takes places on 

premises in which that authority has a relevant property interest, or is in lawful 

occupation; 

•  for entertainment provided by, or on behalf of, a health care provider it takes place on 

any premises forming part of a hospital in which the provider has a relevant property 

interest, or is in lawful occupation; and 

•  for entertainment provided by, or on behalf of, a school proprietor it takes place on 

the premises of the school. 

16.17 This Guidance cannot give examples of every eventuality where entertainment is not 

licensable under this exemption through being provided “by or on behalf of”. It will 

depend on the facts in each case. However, the following are examples of activities that 

are not usually considered to be licensable under this exemption: 

•  Any entertainment activity hosted by a local authority on their own premises, where 

there is a significant relationship between the local authority and the provider of the 

entertainment (e.g. principal and agent); 

•  Any entertainment activity organised on a local authority’s behalf on that local 

authority’s premises by a cultural trust in discharge of a local authority’s discretionary 

power to arrange entertainment provision and support for the arts, including festivals 

and celebrations. 

•  Any entertainment activity organised by a healthcare provider on their own hospital 

premises in partnership with a hospital charity; 

•  Any entertainment event on school premises organised by the Parent Teacher 

Association (PTA) to benefit the school. 

16.18 It is for the local authority, health care provider or school proprietor to determine whether, 

and on what basis, they can (or wish) to provide entertainment activity under this 

exemption, including consideration of issues around fundraising, profit making, 

governance or use of public funds. However a pure hire of premises by a third party35 

                                                
35

 But see paragraph 16.20 

Page 138

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 129 

does not constitute the provision of an entertainment event “on behalf of” a local authority, 

healthcare provider, or school proprietor and nor does commercial entertainment which 

the local authority36 merely facilitates through providing a public space37. 

16.19 All the terms used in this exemption, such as “local authority”, “health care”, “health care 

provider”, “hospital”, “school”, “school premises”, “school proprietor”, “domestic 

premises” and “relevant property interest” are defined in the 2014 Order38. 

Local authority, hospital and school premises: third party music 
entertainment 

16.20 No licence is required for a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music 

on local authority, hospital or school premises, that are not domestic premises, between 

08.00-23.00 on any day provided that: 

•  it is performed in front of an audience of no more than 500 people; and 

•  a person concerned in the organisation or management of the music entertainment 

has obtained the prior written consent39 of the local authority, health care provider or 

school proprietor (as appropriate) for that entertainment to take place. It is for these 

“trusted providers” to determine whether, or not, they wish to make their premises 

available for music entertainment by a 3rd party and on what terms they deem it 

appropriate. 

Community premises: music entertainment 

16.21 No licence is required for a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music 

on community premises40, between 08.00-23.00 on any day provided that: 

•  the community premises are not authorised, by a premises licence or club premises 

certificate, to be used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises41; 

•  the music entertainment is in the presence of an audience of no more than 500 

people; and 

•  a person concerned in the organisation or management of the music entertainment 

has obtained the prior written consent42 of the management committee of the 

premises, or if there is no management committee, a person who has control of the 

premises in connection with the carrying on by that person of a trade, business or 

other undertaking, or failing that a person with a relevant property interest in the 

premises. 

                                                
36

 Or healthcare provider or school proprietor. 
37

 The exemption would similarly not apply, for example, to a commercial company operating on premises belonging to a local 
authority under a long term lease. 
38

 See footnote 20 
39

 This requirement is designed to ensure that those responsible for the premises hosting the entertainment have considered 
and approved the effect of the event on other users of their premises and the wider community. 
40

 The definition of community premises is covered in paragraphs 4.56-4.60 of this Guidance. A community premises is likely to 
be multi-functional and ‘other similar building’ within the definition cannot be stretched to ordinarily include a public house, a 
bingo hall, or other business premises or private property. 
41

 Where a community premises is licensed for the supply of alcohol by a premises licence (or exceptionally a club premises 
certificate), then any performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on relevant alcohol licensed premises may be 
subject to the conditional deregulation described in paragraphs 16.26-16.33. 
42

 See footnote 36 

Page 139

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



130 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Community premises: exhibition of film 

16.22 No licence43 is required for an exhibition of a film on community premises44 between 

08.00-23.00 on any day provided that: 

•  the film entertainment is not provided with a view to profit45; 

•  the film entertainment is in the presence of an audience of no more than 500 people; 

•  the admission of children is subject to such restrictions as are necessary to comply 

with the recommendation issued by the BBFC or relevant licensing authority 

regarding the admission of children; and 

•  a person concerned in the organisation or management of the exhibition of the film 

has obtained the prior written consent46 of the management committee of the 

premises, or if there is no management committee, a person who has control of the 

premises in connection with the carrying on by that person of a trade, business or 

other undertaking, or failing that a person with a relevant property interest in the 

premises. 

16.23 Under this exemption, one condition is that the film entertainment is not being provided 

with a view to profit47. An entry charge does not of itself make the film entertainment 

licensable; it is whether the organiser intended to make a profit (that includes raising 

money for charity). A charge or contribution that is made solely to cover the costs of the 

film screening48 is consistent with ‘not being provided with a view to profit’. The ‘not with 

a view to profit’ condition applies solely to the activity of exhibiting the film under this 

exemption. A charge with a view to making a profit may legitimately be levied for any 

other activity or event that is distinct from film admission, such as the provision of 

refreshments, film talks, or a social event. 

16.24 This community film exemption is also conditional on those responsible having in place 

operating arrangements that ensure that the age rating for the film is implemented by 

means of a suitable child admission policy49. How this is achieved is a matter for the 

organisation or social group exhibiting the film. For example, they may operate a 

membership subscription scheme which pays for entry to all titles in a season and is 

limited to adults. It could be a children’s film club with a policy of only showing films that 

are suitable for all by being rated ‘U’ by the BBFC. Alternatively, the organisers could 

sell tickets to the public and ensure that children are only permitted to attend in 

accordance with any age rating for the film – i.e. a door admissions policy linked to proof 

of age. 

  

                                                
43

 However, see paragraph 16.70 in relation to copyright 
44

 See footnote 37 
45

 See paragraph 16.23 
46

 See footnote 36 
47

 ‘not provided with a view to profit’ is the inverse of ‘with a view to profit’ mentioned in paragraph 16.13 
48

 Legitimate costs of a film screening would include overheads directly relevant to providing the film entertainment (e.g. 
premises hire, film hire, equipment etc.) 
49

 See 3rd bullet point in paragraph 16.22 

Page 140

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 131 

Travelling circuses 

16.25 Where types of entertainment are present in a performance by a travelling circus50 they 

will not be licensable provided that certain qualifying conditions are met51. The qualifying 

conditions are that: 

•  the entertainment is not an exhibition of a film or a boxing or wrestling entertainment; 

•  the entertainment takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day; 

•  the entertainment takes place wholly within a moveable structure and the audience 

present is accommodated wholly inside that moveable structure; and 

•  the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 

consecutive days. 

Live music 

16.26 Live music is licensable: 

•  where a performance of live music – whether amplified or unamplified – takes place 

before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day; 

•  where a performance of amplified live music does not take place either on relevant 

licensed premises, or at a workplace that is not licensed other than for the provision 

of late night refreshment; 

•  where a performance of amplified live music takes place at a time when the relevant 

licensed premises are not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply 

of alcohol for consumption on the premises52; 

•  where a performance of amplified live music takes place at relevant licensed 

premises, or workplaces53, in the presence of an audience of more than 500 

people54; or 

•  where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation 

provided for by the 2003 Act when imposing a condition on a premises licence or club 

premises certificate as a result of a licence review55. 

16.27 In any of the above circumstances, unless the performance of live music is appropriately 

authorised by a premises licence, club premises certificate or TEN, allowing it to take 

place could lead to enforcement action and, where relevant, a review of the alcohol 

licence or certificate. 

16.28 A public performance of live unamplified music that takes place between 08.00 and 

23.00 on the same day no longer requires a licence under the 2003 Act in any location. 

An exception to this is where a specific condition related to live music is included 

following a review of the premises licence or club premises certificate in respect of 

relevant licensed premises. 

                                                
50

 ‘Travelling circus’ is defined in the 2014 Order as meaning a circus which travels from site to site for the purpose of giving 
performances. Musical entertainment at a travelling fairground is likely to be incidental to the main attractions and rides that are 
not themselves regulated entertainment. 
51

 There is no audience limit for this exemption, but the conditions are designed to ensure that deregulation does not have 
unintended consequences for the licensing objectives – e.g. only bona fide travelling circuses qualify. 
52

 See Chapter 3 of this Guidance 
53

 See paragraph 16.31 
54

 The 2014 Order substituted “500” for “200” that was in the 2012 Act 
55

 See paragraphs 16.55-16.56 

Page 141

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



132 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

16.29 As a result of the amendments to the 2003 Act, section 177 of the 2003 Act now only 

applies to performances of dance56. 

Key terms used in relation to live music 

16.30 Under the live music provisions, “music” includes vocal or instrumental music or any 

combination of the two. “Live music” is a performance of live music in the presence of 

an audience which it is intended to entertain. While a performance of live music can 

include the playing of some recorded music, ‘live’ music requires that the performance 

does not consist entirely of the playing of recorded music without any additional 

(substantial and continual) creative contribution being made. So, for example, a drum 

machine or backing track being used to accompany a vocalist57 or a band would be part 

of the performance of amplified live music. The performance of a DJ who is merely 

playing tracks would not be classified as live music, but it might if he or she was 

performing a set which largely consisted of mixing recorded music in a live performance 

to create new sounds58. There will inevitably be a degree of judgement as to whether a 

performance is live music (or recorded music) and organisers of events should check 

with their licensing authority if this consideration is relevant to whether the activity is 

authorised by a licence or certificate. In the event of a dispute about whether a 

performance is live music or not, it will be for the licensing authority initially and 

ultimately, for the courts to decide in the individual circumstances of any case. 

16.31 A “workplace” is as defined in regulation 2(1) of the Workplace (Health, Safety and 

Welfare) Regulations 1992 and is anywhere that is made available to any person as a 

place of work. It is a very wide term which can include outdoor spaces, as well as the 

means of entry and exit. 

16.32 A “relevant licensed premises” for the purposes of this chapter is one which is 

authorised to sell or supply alcohol for consumption on the premises by a premises 

licence or club premises certificate. Premises cannot benefit from the deregulation 

introduced by the 2012 Act by virtue of holding an authorisation for the sale or supply of 

alcohol under a TEN.59 

Recorded music 

16.33 No licence is required for recorded music where it takes place on premises which are 

authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to be used for the supply 

of alcohol for consumption on the premises. However, recorded music remains 

licensable: 

•  where the playing of recorded music takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any 

day; 

•  where the playing of recorded music takes place at a time when the relevant licensed 

premises are not open for the purposes of being used for the sale or supply of 

alcohol for consumption on the premises;60 

•  where the playing of recorded music takes place at relevant licensed premises in the 

                                                
56

 See paragraph 2.13. Post the 2013 Order, Section177 can be relevant to a performance of dance after 23.00 on any day 
57

 Karaoke is generally classed as a performance of live music 
58

 This would include ‘scratching’ 
59

 TENs are covered in chapter 7 
60

 See Chapter 3 of this Guidance 

Page 142

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 133 

presence of an audience of more than 500 people; and 

•  where a licensing authority intentionally removes the effect of the deregulation 

provided for by the 2003 Act (as amended).61 

Plays and dance 

16.34 No licence is required for a performance of a play or dance to the extent that certain 

qualifying conditions62 are satisfied. However a performance of a play or dance remains 

licensable: 

•  where the performance takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day; or 

•  where the performance takes place in the presence of an audience of more than 500 

people. 

Indoor Sport 

16.35 No licence is required for an indoor sporting event to the extent that certain qualifying 

conditions63 are satisfied. However an indoor sporting event remains licensable: 

•  where the event takes places before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day; 

•  where the event takes place in the presence of more than 1000 spectators. 

Licence conditions 

Live Music or recorded music 

16.36 Any existing licence conditions64 (or conditions added on a determination of an 

application for a premises licence or club premises certificate65) which relate to live 

music or recorded music remain in place, but are suspended between the hours of 

08.00 and 23.00 on the same day where the following conditions are met: 

•  at the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for the purposes of 

being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises; 

•  if the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no more than 500 

people; and 

•  the music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day. 

16.37 Whether a licence condition relates to live or recorded music will be a matter of fact in 

each case. In some instances, it will be obvious that a condition relates to music and will 

be suspended, for example “during performances of live music all doors and windows 

must remain closed”. In other instances, it might not be so obvious: for example, a 

condition stating “during performances of regulated entertainment all doors and 

windows must remain closed” would be suspended insofar as it relates to music 

between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day to an audience of up to 500, but the 

condition would continue to apply if there was regulated entertainment after 23.00. 

16.38 More general licence conditions (e.g. those relating to overall management of potential 

noise nuisance) that are not specifically related to the provision of entertainment (e.g. 

                                                
61

 This would be by way of imposing a condition on a premises licence or club premises certificate as a result of a licence 
review, see paragraphs 16.55-16.56 
62

 See paragraphs 16.6 and 16.45-16.48 
63

 See paragraph 16.6. 
64

 In relation to relevant licensed premises, see paragraph 16.32 
65

 See paragraphs 16.39-16.40 

Page 143

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



134 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

signage asking patrons to leave quietly) will continue to have effect. 

16.39 Chapter 9 of this Guidance sets out how a licensing authority must determine 

applications for a new licence or to vary an existing premises licence. Licence 

conditions imposed, in accordance with paragraphs 9.41 to 9.43, for live or recorded 

music activities will only apply if the activity meets the criteria of having more than 500 

people present, and/or the activities are taking place between 23.00 and 08.00. 

16.40 These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 if a 

performance of live music or the playing of recorded music takes place before an 

audience of 500 people or fewer, but will remain on the face of the licence for when 

these activities may take place under other circumstances. 

16.41 Where a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on relevant 

licensed premises is not licensable, it remains possible for anyone to apply for a review 

of a licence or certificate, if there are appropriate grounds to do so.66 

Beer gardens 

16.42 Beer gardens are often included as part of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate. Live amplified music that takes place in a beer garden is exempt from 

licensing requirements, provided the beer garden is included in the licence or certificate 

applying to the relevant licensed premises, and the performance takes place between 

08.00 and 23.00 on the same day before an audience of 500 people or fewer. 

16.43 Where a beer garden does not form part of the relevant licensed premises and so is not 

included in plans attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate, it is 

nevertheless very likely that it will be a workplace67. Paragraph 12B of Schedule 1 to the 

2003 Act says that a performance of live music in a workplace that does not have a 

licence (except to provide late night refreshment) is not regulated entertainment if it 

takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day in front of an audience of no 

more than 500 people. Note that the exemption in paragraph 12B does not apply to the 

playing of recorded music. 

16.44 However, a licensing authority may, where justified68, impose a licence condition that 

relates to the performance of live music in an unlicensed beer garden being served by 

any associated premises licence or club premises certificate. Provided such a condition 

is lawfully imposed, it takes effect in accordance with its terms. 

Plays, dance and indoor sport 

16.45 Where qualifying conditions are satisfied69, any current licence condition that relates to 

a performance of a play or dance, or an indoor sporting event for which a licence is no 

longer required will (except in the circumstances described in the next paragraph) have 

no effect. 

16.46 Where, however, these non-licensable activities take place at the same time as other 

                                                
66

 See paragraphs 16.55-16.56 and chapter 11. 
67

 A beer garden is one example of a potential workplace, see paragraph 16.31. Whether other outdoor spaces (such as seating 
adjacent to a premises, a smoking shelter, or a car park) constitute a workplace, part of the licensed premises, or neither, will be 
a matter of fact in each case. 
68

 Including on a licence review 
69

 See paragraph 16.6 

Page 144

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 135 

activities for which a licence is required (e.g. the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises), conditions included in a licence may nevertheless apply 

to the non-licensable activities in the circumstances set out in paragraphs 16.52 and 

16.53 (conditions relating to other non-licensable activities). 

16.47 Dance that is sufficiently sexual in nature continues to be regulated. Performances of 

dance which are “relevant entertainment” within the meaning of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 1982 Act”) are not deregulated, regardless of 

the size of the audience or the time of day. “Relevant entertainment” is defined in the 

1982 Act as a live performance or live display of nudity that, ignoring financial gain, can 

be assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating 

any member of the audience.70 

16.48 In almost all cases where a performance of dance is potentially licensable as both the 

provision of relevant entertainment (under the 1982 Act) and regulated entertainment 

(under the 2003 Act), the 1982 Act disapplies the entertainment licensing regime in the 

2003 Act in favour of its stricter regime for the control of sex establishments. However, 

an authorisation under the 2003 Act rather than the 1982 Act will continue to be required 

where: 

•  the premises are not licensed as a sex entertainment venue under the 1982 Act, and 

•  relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11 

occasions in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than 

24 hours or taking place within a month of any other such occasion. 

Boxing or wrestling entertainment and conditions relating to combined 
fighting sports 

16.49 An indoor boxing or wrestling entertainment cannot also be an indoor sporting event, 

and any contest, exhibition or display that combines boxing or wrestling with one or 

more martial arts (‘combined fighting sports’) is – whether indoors or not – a boxing or 

wrestling entertainment. 

16.50 Where a premises licence or club premises certificate purports to authorise a boxing or 

wrestling entertainment or combined fighting sports as an ‘indoor sporting event’, the 

2013 Order provides that the authorisation will be treated as having authorised those 

activities as a boxing or wrestling entertainment. Those activities will continue to be 

subject to any relevant conditions attached to that authorisation. 

16.51 A contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or of freestyle wrestling, 

between two participants (regardless of their sex) does not require a licence provided 

that certain qualifying conditions are met. They are that: 

•  it takes place in the presence of no more than 1,000 spectators; 

•  it takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day; and 

•  it take place wholly inside a building and the spectators present at that entertainment 

are accommodated wholly inside that building. 

                                                
70

 Home Office Guidance is available at: 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20100413151441/http://crimereduction.homeoffice.gov.uk/crimereduction057a.pdf  

Page 145

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



136 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Conditions relating to other non-licensable activities 

16.52 If appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and if there is a link to 

remaining licensable activities, conditions that relate to non-licensable activities can be 

added to or altered on that premises licence or club premises certificate at review 

following problems occurring at the premises. This has been a feature of licence 

conditions since the 2003 Act came into force. A relevant example could be the use of 

conditions relating to large screen broadcasts of certain sporting events which, 

combined with alcohol consumption, could create a genuine risk to the promotion of the 

licensing objectives. It is also not uncommon for licence conditions relating to the sale of 

alcohol to restrict access to outside areas, such as unlicensed beer gardens, after a 

certain time. 

16.53 Similarly, while karaoke no longer needs licensing as the provision of entertainment 

facilities71 (and will generally be classed as a performance of live music72) it might, for 

example, be possible on review to limit the use or volume of a microphone made 

available for customers on an ‘open-mic’ night (which encompasses more than just live 

music), if a problem had occurred because of customers purchasing alcohol for 

consumption on the premises becoming louder and less aware of causing noise 

nuisance later in the evening. Another example might be a condition restricting access 

to a dance floor at certain times, where the presence of customers in close proximity 

who had been consuming alcohol on the premises had led to serious disorder. In the 

first instance it is for the licensing authority to satisfy itself that a particular condition is 

appropriate and lawful in each case. 

Removing licence conditions 

16.54 A licence holder who wishes to remove conditions relating to activities that are no longer 

licensable73 may apply to the licensing authority for a licence variation. In the course of 

considering such applications, licensing authorities should remove such conditions 

unless there are sufficiently serious and specific concerns about the effects of hosting 

deregulated entertainment activities along with the remaining licensable activities taking 

place in the premises. 

Licence reviews: Live and recorded music 

16.55 On a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, section 177A(3) of the 

2003 Act permits a licensing authority to lift the suspension74 and give renewed effect 

to an existing condition relating to music. Similarly, under section 177A(4), a licensing 

authority may add a condition relating to music as if music were regulated 

entertainment, and as if that premises licence or club premises certificate licensed the 

music. In both instances the condition should include a statement that Section 177A 

does not apply to the condition. 

16.56 An application for a review in relation to relevant premises can be made by a licensing 

                                                
71

 As a result of the 2012 Act 
72

 Karaoke is generally classed as a ‘performance of live music’, and provided that it is genuinely taking place, it is not likely to 
be classed as the ‘playing of recorded music’ 
73

 A licence holder may favour removal if the previously licensable activity has “grandfather” conditions that are out of date, or 
unclear. Where such a condition in relation to live or recorded music is suspended, then the licence holder may wish to avoid 
any prospect of the condition being given renewed effect (were a suspension to be lifted following a licence review). 
74

 See paragraph 16.38. 

Page 146

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 137 

authority, any responsible authority or any other person. Applications for review must 

still be relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives and meet a number of further 

requirements75. 

Incidental music 

16.57 The performance of live music or playing of recorded music is not regulated 

entertainment under the 2003 Act if it is ‘incidental’ to another activity “which is not itself 

a description of entertainment falling within paragraph 2” of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act. 

16.58 The incidental music exemption can apply to an indoor sporting event or a performance 

of a play or dance for which no licence is required, as it takes place between 08.00 and 

23.00 on the same day and before an audience which does not exceed the relevant 

limit. This is because such an activity is no longer a description of entertainment within 

the meaning of paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act. This means that, while a 

performance of live music or the playing of recorded music cannot be incidental to a 

boxing or wrestling entertainment76 such music may be within the scope of the 

incidental music exemption for an indoor sporting event or performance of a play or 

dance for which no licence is required. 

16.59 Whether or not music is “incidental” to another activity will depend on the facts of each 

case. In considering whether or not live or recorded music is incidental, one relevant 

factor could be whether, against a background of the other activities already taking 

place, the addition of music will create the potential to undermine the promotion of one 

or more of the four licensing objectives of the 2003 Act. Other factors might include 

some or all of the following: 

•  Is the music the main, or one of the main, reasons for people attending the premises 

and being charged? 

•  Is the music advertised as the main attraction? 

•  Does the volume of the music disrupt or predominate over other activities, or could it 

be described as ‘background’ music? 

16.60 Conversely, factors which would not normally be relevant in themselves include: 

•  the number of musicians, e.g. an orchestra providing incidental music at a large 

exhibition; 

•  whether musicians are paid; 

•  whether the performance is pre-arranged; and 

•  whether a charge is made for admission to the premises. 

16.61 In any disputed case, it will be for the licensing authority initially and, ultimately, for the 

courts to consider whether music is “incidental” in the individual circumstances of any 

case. 

  

                                                
75

 See Chapter 11 for more information about reviews under the 2003 Act. 
76

 And as such, the music entertainment needs to be authorised under the 2003 Act. This would include music during a Greco-
Roman or freestyle wrestling entertainment. While, depending on the circumstances, the Greco-Roman or freestyle wrestling 
may, or may not be licensable, it is still within the ‘description’ of a ‘wrestling entertainment’. 

Page 147

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



138 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Busking 

16.62 Busking or street performance is the practice of performing in public spaces for money. 

Performances are not limited to music or singing and can take the form of a wide range 

of activities that people find entertaining. 

16.63 Busking is generally not licensable under the 2003 Act as: 

•  it often occurs in a place that is not a premises made available (at least in part) for 

the purposes of providing entertainment77; 

•  the entertainment is usually incidental to another activity, such as shopping or 

sightseeing, as there are few circumstances in which anyone would go out 

specifically to watch buskers; and 

•  any unamplified live music is not licensable between 08.00 and 23.0078. 

16.64 Local authorities may have policies on busking, including codes of conduct or permit 

regimes and occasionally byelaws and legislation specific to a local authority – although 

many localities have no policy or restrictions. 

Incidental film 

16.65 An exhibition of a film within the meaning of paragraph 15 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act 

is not regulated entertainment if it is ‘incidental’ to another activity “which is not itself a 

description of entertainment falling within paragraph 2” of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act. 

16.66 The incidental film exemption can apply to an indoor sporting event or a performance of 

a play or dance for which no licence is required as it takes place between 08.00 and 

23.00 on the same day before an audience which does not exceed the relevant limit. 

Such activities would no longer be a description of entertainment within the meaning of 

paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act. This means that, while any exhibition of 

moving pictures cannot be incidental to a boxing or wrestling entertainment79, such film 

displays may be within the scope of the incidental film exemption for an indoor sporting 

event or performance of a play or dance for which no licence is required.80 

16.67 Whether or not an exhibition of moving pictures is “incidental” to another activity will 

depend on the facts of each case. In considering whether or not film is incidental, one 

relevant factor could be whether, against a background of the other activities already 

taking place, the addition of an exhibition of moving images will create the potential to 

undermine the promotion of one or more of the four licensing objectives of the 2003 Act. 

This would mean that if the BBFC or the relevant licensing authority has given an age 

rating to a film, video, or music video, then to qualify for the “incidental film” licensing 

exemption, the admission of children to the premises will need to be restricted in 

accordance with the appropriate age rating. But that is one aspect of one relevant 

factor. Other factors to consider in assessing whether film is incidental might include 

some or all of the following: 

                                                
77

 See paragraph 16.3 
78

 See paragraph 16.28 
79

 And as such, the film display needs to be authorised under the 2003 Act. This would include moving pictures during a Greco-
Roman or freestyle wrestling entertainment. While, depending on the circumstances, the Greco- Roman or freestyle wrestling 
may, or may not be licensable, it is still within the ‘description’ of a ‘wrestling entertainment’. 
80

 For indoor sporting events, it takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 in front of an audience which does not exceed 1,000. 

Page 148

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 139 

•  Is the film the main, or one of the main, reasons for people attending the premises 

and being charged? 

•  Is the film advertised as the main attraction? 

•  Does the screening of the film predominate over other activities, or could it be 

described as ‘background’ images? 

•  Does the appearance of moving pictures within another entertainment activity, for 

which no licence is required (e.g. a performance of a play or dance81), undermine the 

promotion of the licensing objectives? 

16.68 In any disputed case, it will be for the licensing authority initially and, ultimately, for the 

courts to consider whether film is “incidental” in the individual circumstances of any 

case. 

Entertainment activity provided as part of childcare 

16.69 Entertainment activity that is provided as part of childcare will generally not be 

licensable. This includes entertainment activity in a nursery or private home. In addition, 

paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act includes a licensing exemption for an 

exhibition of a film where the main purpose is to provide education. Education will 

generally include all forms of pre-school child and day care. Furthermore, an exhibition 

of a film, or the playing of live or recorded music, will generally be incidental to the 

activity of childcare and so the incidental music and film exemption in paragraph 7 of 

Schedule 1 will also apply82. This will generally be the case for any entertainment 

activity organised as part of wraparound childcare83, including breakfast clubs, after 

school clubs or holiday clubs linked to the child’s school or based in the local 

community. 

Other Licensing regimes 

Copyright 

16.70 The deregulation of licensing for the provision of entertainment under the 2003 Act does 

not remove the requirement for licences for the use of copyright works. Entertainment 

activities as described in paragraph 16.2 may require music and screening licences for 

example. The acquisition of such licences will make the entertainment compliant with 

the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988.84 

Leafleting 

16.71 The deregulation of entertainment licensing does not remove the prohibition on the 

unauthorised distribution of free printed matter in an area that has been designated 

under Schedule 3A of the Environmental Protection Act 199085. The organisers of the 

event or entertainment may need to obtain consent from the relevant principal litter 

authority before giving out free printed promotional material (leaflets, flyers, cards etc.) 

in a public place in certain areas. 

                                                
81

 See paragraph 16.34 
82

 See paragraphs 16.57-16.68 
83

 Childcare for school aged children around traditional school hours 
84

 Further information concerning how to acquire such licences can be found on http://www.copyrighthub.co.uk 
85

 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/43/schedule/3A 

Page 149

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20



140 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Child performers 

16.72 Child performance legislation86 requires that a licence must be obtained from a child’s 

home local authority before a child can take part in certain types of performance and 

activities. A licence may be required whether or not any payment is made for the child to 

perform. The deregulation of entertainment licensing does not alter the regulations on 

when children can take part in performances87. 

 

                                                
86

 Children and Young Persons Act 1993 and 1963; The Children (Performance) Regulations 1968 as amended. 
87

 The Children (Performances) Regulations 1968 

Page 150

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 20


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	5 Review of Premises Licence - Barrow Rugby League Football Club, Craven Park, Calcutta Street, Barrow-in-Furness
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11
	Appendix 12
	Appendix 13
	Appendix 14
	Appendix 15
	Appendix 16
	Appendix 17
	Appendix 18
	Appendix 19
	Appendix 20


